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STAKEHOLDERS INFORMATION
B AEH

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Announcement of 2014 final results 24 March 2015
AGM 2015 8 June 2015
Ex-dividend date for 2014 final dividend I5 June 2015
Despatch of dividend warrants on or about 29 June 2015
Announcement of 2015 interim results (tentative) August 2015
Announcement of 2015 final results (tentative) March 2016

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 2015 (“*AGM 2015”)

The AGM 2015 will be held on Monday, 8 June 2015. The notice of the AGM
2015, which constitutes part of the circular to shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders"), is sent together with this Annual Report to Shareholders. This Annual
Report, the circular to Shareholders, the notice of the AGM 2015 and the proxy form
are also available on the Stock Exchange’s website (http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the

Company's website (http://www.5100.net).
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STAKEHOLDERS INFORMATION
B AEH

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining Shareholders' eligibility to attend and vote at the AGM 2015:

Latest time to lodge transfer 4:30p.m. on 2 June 2015
documents for registration
Closure of register of members 3to 8 June 2015

(both dates inclusive)

Record date 8 June 2015

For determining Shareholders’ entitlement

to the final dividend:

Latest time to lodge transfer 4:30p.m. on 16 June 2015
documents for registration
Closure of register of members |7 to 22 June 2015

(both dates inclusive)

Record date 22 June 2015

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Phone: +852 2862 8628

Fax: +852 2865 0990
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TIBET SPRING
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TIBET GLACIER MINERAL WATER CO., LTD.
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Premium bottled glacial mineral water 153 3 K ) || #8 R K
Uniqueness * Purity &5 « 4058
Innovative water card services BT H)7KRIRFER
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PRODUCT PROFILE
B B

TIBET TIANDI GREEN BEVERAGE
DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD.

G xusensRRERAR

*0 Premium Tibet highland barley beer
0 AR =R EREE

TIBET HIGHLAND NATURAL WATER LIMITED
AR REXAKERAT

| 2-liter “Zhuoma Spring” barrelled natural drinking water
2 ATT SR IHERAKAK
+ “Easy Joy * Zhuoma Spring’ bottled natural drinking water
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AVTh ¢

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YU Yiping Wallace (Chairman)
Mr. FU Lin (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. YUE Zhigiang

Ms. MOU Chunhua

Mr. LIU Chen

Mr. WONG Hak Kun

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Ms. JIANG Xiaohong

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Jesper Bjoern MADSEN
Mr. LEE Conway Kong Wai
Mr. Kevin Cheng WEI

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. CHOW Wai Kit

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. CHOW Wai Kit
Mr. LIU Chen

INDEPENDENT EXTERNAL AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISORS

Kirkland & Ellis
Sit, Fung, Kwong & Shum Solicitors

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONSULTANT
PR Concepts Asia Limited
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AVTh ¢

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KYI-1111

Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 3401, 34th Floor, China Resources Building

No. 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai

Hong Kong

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY -1 111

Cayman Islands

WEBSITES TO ACCESS COMPANY INFORMATION*

http://www.5100.net
http://www.hkexnews.hk

STOCK CODE ON MAIN BOARD OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE

[115

¥ contents of the websites do not form part in this Annual Report
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FEHREE

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the Annual Report for Tibet 5100
Water Resources Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2014.

In 2014, China's economic growth continued to slow down. In order to cope with
pressure on the domestic high-end consumer market and to solidify Tibet 5100's leading
position in China's high-end drinking water market, the Company continued to implement
a market-oriented approach by expanding its marketing network, actively building strategic
alliances, and striving to stand out amid intensified competition in the industry. Over
the course of the past year, the Company continued to successfully diversify its business
through a number of initiatives. The Company introduced a new line of “Diamond
Series” water in glass bottles, launched its first high quality natural drinking water in barrel
packaging, and maintained steady growth in its highland barley beer business in 2014. At
the same time, the Company has also been actively planning to expand into worldwide
market gearing with high-end glass bottle to a number of countries and regions including

Hong Kong, Macau and Japan.

The Group's revenue for the year ended 3| December 2014 was RMB773 million, which
was on similar level with 2013, and profit attributable to owners of the Company was
RMB343 million. The board (the “Board") of directors (the “Directors”) recommended
the payment of a final dividend of HKD4 cents per share, or RMB8I| million in total to
shareholders of the Company. The remaining retained eamings as at 3|1 December 2014

was approximately RMBI, |58 million.

INCREASED SHARE OF REVENUE FROM NON-CRE CUSTOMERS AS A
RESULT OF THE EFFECTIVE MARKET-ORIENTED APPROACH

In the past year, the Group continued to execute its market-oriented strategy to expand
the number of retail and multi-channel outlets that sell its products as well as strengthening
sales to institutional customers. We are pleased to see that revenues from non-CRE

customers further increased to 87% of total revenues in 2014 from 59% in 2013.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFEHREE

In order to execute the market-oriented strategy, a big part of this plan involved
strengthening the marketing team. By the end of 2014, Mr. Sunny WONG Hak Kun,
former Chairman of Carlsberg China, was appointed an executive Director. Mr. Wong
has more than 30 years of experience in the fast-moving consumer goods industry,
including over 25 years of experience in China's beverage market. He held several senior
management positions at top international beer companies, including Carlsberg Breweries
and Bass Brewers. Meanwhile, the Group also recruited a group of talented executives
from Danone that was responsible for the sales and marketing of Evian in China. Their
extensive experience and resources in the high-end water market shall greatly reinforce

the Company's marketing capabilities.

The Company has seen a positive response from consumers towards its innovative
Water Card service. During the past year, the Group's revenues from bottled water
redemption card (“Water Card") continued to grow and accounted for 30% of revenue
in the mineral water business. Given the Group's strong logistics system, consumers can
use Water Cards to redeem bottled water products across the country, which serves as
a great convenience for consumers in various areas of China and also provides a healthy

alternative for gift giving.

In August 2014, the Company signed a strategic partnership framework agreement with
Sinopec to sell Tibet 5100 Glacial Spring Water (“5100 Glacial Water") in its Easy Joy
convenience stores, which greatly expanded the Company's retail network. In November
2014, the Company participated in the BMW Masters Golf Toumament as the official
water sponsor, thus becoming the country's first high-end water brand that sponsored
all premier golf tournaments in China. A variety of promotional activities such as these
has improved the Company's brand awareness and influence in the industry and further
promoted sales.

LAUNCHED WATER IN GLASS BOTTLES FOR INTERNATIONAL
EXPANSION

The Company continues to launch innovative new products in its core 5100 Glacial
Water business. In October 2014, Tibet 5100 launched its “Diamond Series” water
in glass bottles and PET bottles, which won the “Best Packaged Water" at the World
Beverage Innovation Awards, a prize which was competed among over 300 products
originating from 40 countries. The glass bottles were designed to align with the high-
quality origin of our products and establish enhanced brand image, aiming at penetrating a
select group of distribution points, such as high-end hotels, western restaurants, and sports
and entertainment venues, strengthening product competitiveness in overseas markets
and accelerating the pace of promoting our products to the international stage.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FEHREE

ACQUIRED ZHUOMA SPRING WATER AND DIVERSIFIED OPERATIONS

Since the Company's IPO in 2011, the Group has diversified in terms of expanding the
scale of its business, product mix, and business portfolio. In addition to the launch of the
Diamond Series water, the Company has expanded into the field of specialty Tibetan
beer. The revenues generated by the highland barley beer business from Tibet Tiandi
Green Beverage Development Co,, Ltd. (“Tiandi Green") in 2014 remained favorable with

steady growth.

In addition, the Company acquired a 33% equity interest in Tibet Highland Natural Water
Limited (“Highland Natural Water"). Zhuoma Spring by Highland Natural Water is a
renowned brand of high-quality natural water from Tibet. As Zhuoma Spring targets
a different segment of the market by offering quality barrelled water products, it will

complement our existing high-end bottled glacial mineral water.

CORPORATE HONORS AND BRAND RECOGNITION

After years of hard work, the Company has received a number of awards and distinctions.
In 2014, 5100 Glacial Water won the “Bing Hun Award" presented by the China
Intemational High-end Bottled Drinking Water Expo for the third consecutive year.

In early 2014, Tibet 5100 entered the top 10 of Forbes China’s Top 100 Publicly Traded
Small Businesses. In the same year, the Group was recognized again as a Global Growth

Company Member by the World Economic Forum (Summer Davos).

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As a brand based in the Tibetan highlands, we have always adhered to the principles of
social responsibility and win-win cooperation as they try to balance corporate growth
with regional economic development. We are dedicated to maintaining the culture and

improving the quality of life for the people of Tibet.

The Company is actively involved in various activities as it seeks to be a responsible
corporate citizen. For the second consecutive year, the Company was a partner of the
Olympic Day Run in 2014. Sponsored by the Samaranch Sports Development Fund, of
which the Company was a founding partner, the event promotes the Olympic spirit. The

Company also participated in the 24th National Fund Raising Campaign for the disabled.

18 TIBET 5100 WATER RESOURCES HOLDINGS LTD. « #5100k &RIZERE R 1 &

WREERRRAK  BEKES T
ARBEB-T——FLMUEK - THIERZ
BRE AREREBENEBAS - A5E
MEBTEZLBRZTI  BKTHREMES
O I m AN ZATERERARSE
MR BIETZ T RR - TR KA E
FmBERARLDA([RipiRE O EREE
EBE_T-MFEFRE T REFNEAKF
BRIE °

R BFKET AEERARKERA A
([BRRAK] B B%HBRE  5RAA
KM@ 25 I ARENANEEERA
BEAKRE - ARMBENTR @ HENR
EELERRKAKELBARMEE NS
MEKNBRKESEBEER  BERY -

SEREREERE  BEHRERA
BESEEEHE  ANNEINCENE
B8 T &5 HBERT - 51004k KEET
TN PEERE LKAk ES
MIkRE]  BERREREEESFES
S -

—ZT—NEY) - AmESI00E S BAETPE -
BN ER 158 FFEEREY RICE
WE(EZERNRAINKREGEAE -

EREELE  SELERR

ERERERNREME  QELE - A1
ZRARERMBSMRA - —EAR - 3K
PEESK—ERAKEERREARELT
RBERNBLRNAN  BORAERA
ROEEKFRSMUERERTERNE -

R - HATRO2 NSRBI GRS - BT
CERARMHERME —T—0F - &M
BEF_FRARMER BREEBNEIE
B ZRBHE - EIREE RN 5
WESRTRERRASSHN  AMEHE
BB BBz — - B RAESMTE
TTHOREEPEATEERHNETET -
BEETEE L -




CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFEHREE

OUTLOOK

In 2015, it is expected that the Chinese economy will continue to face downward
pressure and the high-end consumer goods sector will be affected by various factors.
Despite these significant challenges, the Company believes that the fundamentals of the
premium beverage industry will remain positive, with rising consumer wealth and living
standards, as well as growing demand for healthy products in Mainland China. At the same
time, increasing interest in specialty Tibetan products from Mainland China will also serve

as an important driver of the Company's overall business development.

The Company intends to continue to enhance its capabilities in marketing and promotion,
fully leverage its six major distribution channels, cooperate closely with distributors, and
direct more resources to expand its retail network (owned by third parties) across the

country.

Moreover, in order to increase value and enhance the consumer experience, the
Company will strengthen its two-way communication with consumers by continuing to
strengthen its existing e-commerce platform and mobile App, and make good use of social

media platforms.

Further, the Group is dedicated to utilizing its current stable financial situation and efficient
management model to push forward its sustained development and maximize value for

shareholders.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to our management
team and staff for their dedication to the Company during the past year. | would also like
to extend my thanks to all shareholders, acquaintances in the banking and investment

sectors and business partners for your ongoing support.

YU Yiping Wallace

Chairman

24 March 2015
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
HEHE

Year ended 3| December

BE+-A=t—-HLEE
2014
—z-mE

Change
25

773 | 2%

(NREEET 343 | 22%
SREF

— EAREEBE(ARED) 13.37 17.18

| 22%

-

| ]
Sales Volume (in tonnes) HESZ(E) 116,577 103,120 113%
Gross profit margin ENIES 63% 73% | 14%
Average selling price per tonne (RMB'000) FHEMEERB(ARE T L) 6.6 7.6 | 13%

As at 3|1 December

R+=A=+—-H

2014 2013

—B-mF —EF=F
(RMB million) (RMB million) Change
(AR¥BER) (AR¥BEET) 25
Total assets BERR 3,436 3257 1 5%

Equity attributable
to owners of the Company RNRARHEE AEILHER 2,678 2,497 [ 7% &
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEE im0

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2014, we continued our endeavors in supplying high quality products and premium
services to our clients, and emphasized the following four aspects in developing the
mineral water and highland barley beer business of the Group in the high-end specialty

beverage industry:

(1) to strengthen our traditional advantages, continuous development of new
institutional clients and endeavor to maintain and enhance the sales volume from
existing institutional clients, as well as to accelerate our expansion of retail sales
channels (owned by third parties) and endeavor to increase the relevant number
of distributors, distributing cities and outlets and increase the sales capacity of each

outlet;

(2)  to develop our innovative business and to strengthen our e-commerce platform for

selling Water Card and our products online;

(3)  tostrengthen our advertising and promotional activities and branding publicity; and
(4)  toimprove our productivity and quality control management.

Although facing a competitive business environment, the Group was able to increase the
share of total revenue in our retail distribution channel of our mineral water business
segment from 28% in 2013 to 51% in 2014.

The scope of our retail sales channel (owned by third parties) of our mineral water
business segment was extended from 86 cities as at 31 December 2013 to 105 cities as at
31 December 2014. The number of distributors increased from 228 as at 31 December
2013 to 264 as at 31 December 2014, and the number of sales outlets increased from
8,053 as at 3| December 2013 to 9,577 as at 31 December 2014,

In July 2013, we obtained control over Tiandi Green. Highland barley beer of Tiandi
Green was sold within and outside Tibet Autonomous Region. In 2014, the share of total
revenue from sales of our beer within and outside Tibet Autonomous Region was 90%

and 10%, respectively.
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The scope of our retail sales channel of our highland barley beer business segment outside
Tibet Autonomous Region was extended to 53 cities as at 31 December 2014. The
number of distributors amounted to 35 as at 3| December 2014, and the number of sales
outlets amounted to 275 as at 3| December 2014.

The share of our 5100 Glacial Water Water Card business in the total revenue of
our mineral water business segment increased from 3% in 2013 to 30% in 2014,
and continued to be one of our major sources of profit growth in our mineral water
business segment. To enhance our e-commerce sales platform and to boost future sales,
we developed our self-operated e-commerce platform to sell and redeem the Water
Cards through our official website and developed a mobile application programme to
serve clients since 2013. Both platforms have been strengthened and continued to run
seamlessly and effectively throughout 2014, each achieving the purpose of increasing on-

line sales and accumulating consumers data for analytical purpose.
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On 30 June 2014, the Group entered into a new procurement agreement with China
Railway Express Co., Ltd (“CRE") (the “New CRE Procurement Agreement”) as the
previous CRE procurement agreement expired on 3| December 2013. Pursuant to the
New CRE Procurement Agreement, CRE is required to purchase from the Group 50,000
tonnes of bottled mineral water for the period between | July 2014 and 30 June 2015.

Please refer to the Company's announcement dated 30 June 2014 for further detalils.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

In 2014, total sales of the Group amounted to RMB773 million, representing a slight
decrease of 2% from the total sales of the Group of RMB787 million in 2013.

The gross profit margin of our mineral water business segment has decreased from 81.2%
in 2013 to 78.4% in 2014, mainly because of a decrease in selling price of the bottled
mineral water to CRE. However, the gross margin of our highland barely beer business
has increased from 36.0% in the second half of 2013 to 41.6% in 2014, mainly due to
optimization of our product mix. The overall gross profit margin of the Group decreased
from 73.2% in 2013 to 62.7% in 2014.

REVENUE

In 2014, total sales of the Group, consisting the revenue generated from the sales of
RMB443 million of our mineral water business segment and sales of RMB330 million of
our highland barley beer business segment, amounted to RMB773 million, representing a
decrease of RMB 14 million or 2% compared to the revenue of RMB787 million in 201 3.
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In 2014, the sales of bottled mineral water to CRE accounted for 13% of total sales of
the Group of RMB773 million, representing a decrease of 28 percentage point from
41% in 2013. That was mainly caused by a temporary suspension in supply of bottled
mineral water to CRE in the first half of 2014, following the expiration of the previous
CRE procurement agreement on 3| December 2013, and the selling price of the bottled
mineral water from the New CRE Procurement Agreement being lower than that of the
previous CRE agreement. In 2014, despite a drop of 22% and 32% in sales volume and
sales revenue in our mineral water business segment, respectively, compared to 2013,
due to consolidating the full year sales revenue of RMB330 million of our highland barley
beer business segment in 2014 (while in 2013 only the sales revenue in the second half
year of RMBI139 million of the same was consolidated, as Tiandi Green had just become a
subsidiary of the Company since 9 July 2013), the total revenue of the Group in 2014 only
slightly decreased by RMBI14 million or 2% compared to 2013.
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The average selling price of our mineral water products decreased from RMB8, 145
per tonne in 2013 to RMB7,124 per tonne in 2014, which was mainly attributable to a
decrease in selling price of the bottled mineral water to CRE as mentioned above. In
addition, due to the consolidation of the average selling price of RMB6,059 per tonne
of our highland barley beer products, the total average selling price decreased from
RMB7,631 pertonne in 2013 to RMB6,627 per tonne in 2014,

SALES VOLUME

In 2014, the total sales volume of the Group amounted to | 16,577 tonnes, consisting the
sales volume of 62,124 tonnes in our mineral water business segment and sales volume of
54,453 tonnes in our highland barley beer business segment, representing an increase of

13% compared to the total sales volume of 103,120 tonnes in 2013,

In 2014, the total sales volume generated from non-CRE institutional clients and traditional
retail operation channels (owned by third parties) increased by 33,306 tonnes from
53,120 tonnes in 2013 to 86,426 tonnes in 2014, representing a year-on-year increase
of 63%. In respect of our mineral water business segment, because no bottled mineral
water was supplied to CRE in the first half of 2014, sales volume of bottled mineral water
supplied to CRE in 2014 amounted to 30,151 tonnes, representing a decrease of 19,849

tonnes compared to the sales volume of 50,000 tonnes in 201 3.

OTHER NET GAINS

Other net gains mainly included government grants, which were recognized at their fair
value based on reasonable assurance that such grants would be received and the Group
would comply with all attached conditions. In addition to government grants, other
net gains also included gains on disposal of AFS. The overall increase in other net gains
of RMBI2 million was mainly attributable to increase in gains on disposal of AFS, after
deducting the impact of the decrease in government grants from RMB 56 million in 2013
to RMBI54 million in 2014.
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As our main production processes are carried out in Tibet, we enjoy relevant government
grants from time to time. The amount of grants we received from the government of
Tibet was calculated largely with reference to our fiscal contribution to the local economic
development as a major tax payer and employer in Tibet. Tibet Glacier Mineral Water
Marketing Co. Ltd, Tibet Zhongji Jiahua Industry Co, Ltd. and Tiandi Green, our indirect
subsidiaries established in the Tibet Lhasa Economic and Technology Development Zone,
entered into the government grant agreements with the Economic Development Bureau
of the Tibet Lhasa Economic and Technology Development Zone, under which the three
companies were granted enterprise development funds, calculated with reference to the
individual fiscal contribution of the three companies to the local government in Tibet.
Based on the relevant rules in Tibet, enterprises that operate in Tibet and make fiscal

contributions to the local government are eligible for applying for such government grants.
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SHARE OF POST-TAX PROFITS OF AN ASSOCIATE

The Group acquired 35% equity interests in Tiandi Green on 25 December 2012 and
subsequently acquired an additional 30% equity interests in Tiandi Green on 9 July 2013.
Up to 9 July 2013, the Group's then ownership of 35% equity interests in Tiandi Green
has generated a share of the post-tax profits of an associate in the amount of RMBI8
million. The Group's share of sales volume and revenue in respect of the highland barley
beer business of Tiandi Green in 2013 were 9,239 tonnes and RMB58 million, respectively.
No such share of post-tax profits of this associate was incurred since Tiandi Green
became a subsidiary of the Company on 9 July 201 3.

The Group acquired 20% equity interests in Highland Natural Water on 5 November
2014 and subsequently acquired an additional 13% equity interests in Highland Natural
Water on 29 January 2015. Up to 3| December 2014, the Group's ownership of 20%
equity interests in Highland Natural Water has generated a share of the post-tax profits
of an associate in the amount of RMBI million. The Group's share of sales volume and
revenue in respect of Highland Natural Water in 2014 were 2,579 tonnes and RMB6
million, respectively.

FINANCE NET INCOME

Finance net income of RMB4 million included finance income and finance costs. In 2014,
finance income and finance cost in respect of our mineral water business segment
amounted to RMB14 million and RMB2 million, respectively, and finance costs in respect
of our highland barley beer business segment amounted to RMB8 million. This represents
a decrease of RMBI0 million in total finance income and an increase of RMB6 million in
total finance costs, compared to RMB24 million and RMB4 miillion in 2013, respectively.
Such a decrease of total finance income was mainly due to the decrease in other interest
income of RMB9 million and the increase of total finance costs was mainly attributable
to consolidating the full year finance cost of our highland barley beer business segment
in 2014, while in 2013 only the finance cost in the second half year of the same was
consolidated, as Tiandi Green had just become a subsidiary of the Company since 9 July
2013.
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INCOME TAX CHARGE

The income tax charge of the Group decreased by approximately RMB25 million or 24%
from RMBI106 million in 2013 to RMB8I million in 2014. The effective tax rate in 2014
and 2013 was 17.4% and 18.7%, respectively. Such a decrease in the effective tax rate
was mainly attributable to the decrease in the amount of withholding tax of RMB7 million
incurred from proposed distributing profit from PRC subsidiaries to their overseas holding

companies.
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PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

In 2014, in respect of our mineral water business segment, both sales volume and revenue
decreased by 22% and 32% compared to 2013, respectively, which was mainly caused by
a temporary suspension in supplying bottled mineral water to CRE in the first half of 2014
since the expiration of the previous CRE procurement agreement on 31 December 2013,
and a decrease in the selling price of the bottled mineral water supplied to CRE in 2014,

as mentioned above.

Besides, the share of post-tax profits of Tiandi Green, an associate of the Group in the
first half of 2013 was RMBI8 million. After the status of Tiandi Green changed from an
associate of the Group to a subsidiary of the Company on 9 July 2013, no such share of

post-tax profits of this associate was incurred in 2014.

Notwithstanding the above, net profit of RMB385 million of the Group for 2014 only
decreased moderately by RMB76 million or 7% from 2013. It was mainly attributable
to an increase in consolidating the profit of RMB61 million of Tiandi Green in 2014, and
a decrease in selling and distribution expenses of RMB33 million in the mineral water
business segment due to the effective control on marketing expenditure and the decrease

in volume related transportation expenses incurred from sales to CRE.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

Profit attributable to owners of the Company decreased by RMB98 million, or 22%, from
RMB441 million in 2013 to RMB343 million in 2014, which was in line with the decrease
in net profits, after deducting the non-controlling interest of RMB41 million in Tiandi

Green during the relevant reporting period.
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FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2014, investment in an associate of the Group amounted to
RMB6O I million. As at 31 December 2013, the Group did not have any investment in an
associate. The Group acquired 20% equity interests in Highland Natural Water with cash
consideration of RMB600 million on 5 November 2014. The increase in investment in an

associate of RMB60| million was mainly attributable to such an acquisition.

As a 31 December 2014, deferred income tax assets of the Group amounted to RMB3
million. Compared to RMB8 million as at 31 December 2013, the decrease was mainly
attributable to recovering deferred income tax assets of approximately RMBS5 million in
2014.
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As at 31 December 2014, trade receivables of the Group amounted to RMB332 million
compared to RMB453 miillion as at 31 December 2013. The decrease in trade receivables
was mainly attributable to the decrease in the amount due from one major customer of
the Group from RMB426 million as at 31 December 2013 to RMB289 million as at 31
December 2014, of which RMB80 million had been further collected on or before 24
March 2015. As at 31 December 2014, trade receivables of RMBI76 million aged over
12 months, but within 18 months, and RMBI 13 million aged within 12 months from such
major customer. In view of the decrease in the trade receivables from such customer, out
of the total trade receivables of the Group, and taking into account the history of business
dealings, and the strategic business relationship with such customer, the Group considers
that there is no objective evidence of an impairment loss to the trade receivable due from
such customer. The Group also expects to receive further sums of moneys from such

major customer before the end of June 2015 as settlement of its trade receivables.

There has never been any write-off on the trade receivable due from such customer in
the past. Moreover, the Group maintains regular contact with our major debtors through
meetings and telephone conversation to understand the status of their operations, their
continuing business needs and ways in which the Group can improve its services. During
such meetings and conversations, the Group is not aware of any material circumstances
indicating any problems in recovering its trade receivables from its major debtors. As a
result, no trade receivable was impaired and provided for as at 31 December 2014.

As at 3| December 2014, inventories of the Group amounted to RMB65 million
compared to RMB54 million as at 31 December 2013. The increase was mainly

attributable to an increase in raw materials inventories.

As at 31 December 2014, prepayments (including current and non-current) of the Group
decreased to RMB36 million from RMB4 1 million as at 31 December 2013. The decrease
was mainly attributable to a decrease of RMBI6 million of prepayment made for the
purchase of raw materials, after deducting the impact of an increase in prepaid enterprise
income tax of RMBI0 million.
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As at 31 December 2014, other receivables and other assets (including current and non-
current) of the Group amounted to RMB44 million compared to RMB67 million as at 31
December 2013. Interest receivable increased by RMB4 million but the amount due from
third parties decreased by RMB29 million, mainly leading to an overall decrease in the total

amount of other receivables and other assets.

As at 31 December 2014, the aggregate term deposits and cash and cash equivalents
of the Group amounted to RMB763 million compared to RMB985 million as at 3|
December 2013. After deducting the effect brought from the cash and cash equivalents
generated from operations and the net repayment received from third parties in 2014, the
decrease was mainly attributable to payments made for acquiring the 20% equity interests
of Highland Natural Water and the payment of dividends in 2014.

As at 3| December 2014, deferred revenue and advances received from customers
(including current and non-current) of the Group amounted to RMB9 | million compared
to RMB45 million as at 31 December 2013. Deferred revenue of unredeemed but
effective Water Cards increased by RMB24 million and of advances received from
customers by RMB20 million, mainly leading to an overall increase in the total amount of

deferred revenue and advances received from customers.
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As at 31 December 2014, deferred income tax liabilities of the Group amounted to
RMB36 million compared to RMB50 million as at 31 December 2013. The decrease was
mainly attributable to the decrease in withholding tax liabilities of RMB7 million incurred
from proposed distributing profit from PRC subsidiaries of the overseas holding companies
and to the decrease in the expected income tax rate, from 15% to 9%, applicable to the

relevant amount of deferred tax liabilities as at 31 December 2014.

As at 31 December 2014, trade payables of the Group amounted to RMBI 17 million
compared to RMB73 million as at 31 December 2013. The increase was mainly

attributable to the effective management of trade payables.

As at 31 December 2014, enterprise income tax payable of the Group was nil compared
to RMB20 million as at 31 December 2013. The decrease was mainly because the fourth

quarter enterprise income tax payable was settled in 2014.

As at 31 December 2014, accruals and other payables of the Group amounted to
RMB50 million compared to RMBI44 million as at 3| December 2013. Compared to 31
December 2013, the decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in government
grant received in advance of RMB28 million and the decrease in payable of RMB5 | million

for acquiring equity interest of Tiandi Green.

As at 31 December 2014 and as at 31 December 2013, borrowings (including current
and non-current) of the Group amounted to RMBI91 million and RMB196 million,
respectively. The original borrowing was granted to Tiandi Green by Tibet Autonomous
Region Investment Company and the term was from | July 2009 to 30 June 2014. On |
July 2014, Tiandi Green entered an extension agreement to extend the borrowing to 10
December 2016.
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The Group's net current assets and net assets as at 31 December 2014 were RMB8%4 RZE-ONFEF+HA=+—-H K

million and RMB2,951 million, respectively, and net current assets and net assets as at 31 SEMNERDEERFEEDAAR
December 2013 were RMBI, 141 million and RMB2,729 million, respectively. Although ARBNENTOEETRARY
having significant earmings of RMB385 million and non-current borrowings increased by “TthAERT-BET MRZZE—=F

RMB92 million in 2014, the net current assets nonetheless decreased, which was mainly TZA=+T—BNFERBEERFEED
attributable to the payment of dividends of RMB 163 million, and the payments of RMB600 AIABARB+—EBONT-—BETRARKE

million for acquiring 20% equity interest in Highland Natural Water. Regarding the increase “tHEEZTFABET BAE_T—MF
in net assets, after considering the Group's payment of dividends of RMB163 million in BRERANRE=ZRBN\THEETNBEZRN
2014, the increase in net assets was mainly attributable to the eamings of 2014. ME_Z-—NEFRRPBERLATARE
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2014, the total number of employees for the Group was
approximately 442 compared to 461 as at 3| December 2013. Relevant staff cost was
RMB64 million in 2014, while our staff cost was RMB53 million for 2013. The Group's
remuneration policies are formulated according to the duty, experience, ability and
performance of individual employees and are reviewed annually. In addition to basic salary,
employees are entitled to other benefits including social insurance contribution, employee

provident fund schemes and discretionary incentive.

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio is calculated as borrowings divided by total capital. The total capital is
calculated as “equity” as shown in the consolidated balance sheet plus borrowings. As at
31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the gearing ratio of the Group was 6.1% and
6.7%, respectively.

MERGER AND ACQUISITION

The Group acquired 35% equity interests in Tiandi Green on 25 December 2012. In July
2013, the Group acquired an additional 30% equity interests in Tiandi Green. Together
with the original 35% equity interests in Tiandi Green, the Group has held 65% equity
interests of Tiandi Green and Tiandi Green became a subsidiary of the Company on 9 July
2013.

The group acquired 20% equity interest in Highland Natural Water, a company specializing
in the production and sale of bottled and barrelled highland natural water products, on 5
November 2014. The Company believes such an acquisition was complementary to our
existing business. Please refer to the Company's announcement dated 5 November 2014

for further details.
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The Group acquired an additional 3% equity interests in Highland Natural Water with
cash consideration of RMB390,000,000 on 29 January 2015. Together with the 20% equity
interest acquired in November 2014, the Group owned 33% equity shares of Highland
Natural Water after the above additional acquisition. Please refer to the Company's

announcement date 29 January 2015 for further details.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

In 2014, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment of approximately RMB17
million (in 2013: approximately RMBI0 million). Regarding the future development and
outlook of the Group, please refer to the section headed “Outlook™ in this management

discussion and analysis.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2014 and 3| December 2013, the Group did not have any capital

commitments related to property, plant and equipment.

CHARGES

As at 31 December 2014 and 3| December 2013, the Group did not have any asset

charges.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the Group did not have any significant

contingent liabilities.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group adopts a conservative approach to cash management and risk control. The
Group mainly operates in the PRC with most of its business transactions denominated
in RMB. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from exposure of HKD
against RMB. The Group has not used any forward contracts or currency borrowings to
hedge its foreign exchange risk. Cash was generally placed in short-term deposits and term
deposits denominated in HKD and RMB.
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VALUATION OF PROPERTIES

For the purpose of listing of the Company's shares on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 30 June 2011, a valuation
was conducted on the property interests held by the Group. However, those property
interests were still carried at historical costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment,

if any, on the Group's financial statements.

With reference to the property valuation set out in note 4 of Appendix II-A of the
Company's prospectus dated 20 June 201 | (“Prospectus”), a revaluation surplus of
approximately RMB3,947,000 was identified in respect of the property interests of the
Group as at 31 March 201 1. If the property of the Group were stated at that valuation,

the depreciation charge per annum would increase by approximately RMB130,000.

MINING LICENSE

The terms of the mining license for our water source will expire in August 2015.
According to the relevant PRC regulations, the owner of the license shall submit proposals
for the renewal or extension of the mining license within three months before the
expiry date of the license. The Group intends to commence the procedure for renewal
or extension of the mining license in or around April 2015. The Group will continue to

search for potential opportunities to acquire new water sources.

PRODUCTION CAPACITY

The annual water production capacity and annual beer production capacity for both the
year ended 3| December 2014 and 2013 are approximately 238,000 tonnes and 200,000

tonnes, respectively.
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
30 June 201 | with net proceeds from the global offering of approximately HKD 1,472
million (including proceeds from the exercise of over-allotment option and after deducting
underwriting commissions and related expenses). On 10 April 2013, the Company
resolved to change the usage of the net proceeds from the global offering. Please refer to
the Company's announcement dated 10 April 2013 for details. The revised usage of the

net proceeds has been allocated and have been partially utilized in the following manner:
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As at As at

31 December 31 December

Revised 2014 2014
usage of Utilized Unutilized

net proceeds net proceeds net proceeds
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HKD Million HKD Million HKD Miflion
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Expand our production capacity by RIEZRFNIEmE &
constructing additional facilities and BEREIMEEREN
purchasing additional BAREER
production equipment 133 31 102
Expand our distribution network and FER RS 34948 Ko
toward promotional activities SEEREEE 206 16 190
Mergers and acquisitions that complement  FR{ERE# R K MR A
our existing business EBH e O R 1,092 1,092 —
Working capital and other general RIELEE T KHM
corporate purpose —REERE 41 41 —
1472 [,180 292
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As at 31 December 2014, the Group has utilized net proceeds amounting to HK$3 |
million, HK$16 million, HK$1,092 million and HK$4 | million (i) for expanding our
production capacity; (i) for expanding our distribution network and towards promotional
activities; (iii) for mergers and acquisitions that complement our existing business; and (iv)
as working capital and for other general corporate purposes, respectively. The remaining

net proceeds were deposited in reputable financial institutions.

OUTLOOK

In 2015, we shall continue to maintain close cooperation with the distributors and to
devote more resources to develop our retail sales network (owned by third parties),
including six major distribution channels, namely (i) department stores and supermarkets;
(ii) hotels; (iii) high-end restaurants; (iv) entertainment venues such as night clubs and bars;
(v) golf clubs and private clubs; and (Vi) others, including cinemas, specialty shops at airport
and tourist attractions etc, across different regions in the PRC to promote 5100 Glacial
Water and the highland barley beer.

In addition, we shall continue to enhance our two-way communication with consumers
by further strengthening our existing e-commerce platform and mobile application
programme, and by making use of social media platforms, for adding value and enhancing

consumer experiences.

Moreover, we also plan to launch more new products by leveraging on the famous brand
of 5100 Glacial Water to broaden our product portfolio and expand our sources of
income. The Group has targeted at premium product positioning and exporting demand.
The trial production of glass bottled 5100 Glacial Water was launched in the second
half of 2014 and the full scale production is expected to be launched in 2015, as we aim
to enhance our product grading, to stimulate sales and to prepare potential for export
markets. The Group will also produce and sell barrelled water for further strengthening
our product portfolio. Through this business plan, we expect to achieve a further
development of long-term family customers and also enriching sales channels and more

deeply promote the Group's products. This will form a new profit origin of the Group.
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Further, after the announcement of the 2014 annual results, the Group had signed a joint
venture agreement with Maotai Group and each party will contribute RMB50,000,000 to
form a joint venture company in the PRC aiming to engage in the barrelled water business

of the Group.

Furthermore, we will sell highland natural water products, and to maintain a close and
long-term strategic cooperating relationship with Highland Natural Water and its single
largest shareholder, Sinopec Group, to more deeply promote the products of the Group
by means of its strong sales channels. We will continue to implement and execute the
strategic cooperation framework agreement with Sinopec Easy Joy Sales Co,, Ltd. In 2015,
we expect that 5100 Glacial Water and highland barley beer of the Group will be fully
stationed in Easy Joy convenience stores of Sinopec Easy Joy Sales Co., Ltd, and be sold
in Easy Joy convenience stores at Sinopec gas stations across the whole country . This will

greatly expand the sales channels and increase the retail sales revenue of the Group.

Besides, the Group will expand and optimize its sales force by absorbing well experienced
sales talent into the Group for strengthening 5100 Glacial Water's leading position in the

competitive premium water industry.

While continuing to implement the aforesaid four major business development strategies
and actively strengthen the integration of our existing resources in both of our mineral
water business segment and highland barley beer business segment, and to generate
further synergy between the mineral water business and the highland barley beer business,
the Group will continue to seek for new projects with a business presence in the Chinese
specialty beverage industry, leading to the diversification of our business and products, and

resulting to the continuous development and strengthening.
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Executive Directors

Mr. YU Yiping Wallace, aged 59, is the chairman and an executive Director of our
Company. Mr. Yu has been an executive Director of our Company since 8 November
2010. Mr. Yu is the co-founder of our Group and has been responsible for the overall
business development and strategic planning of our Group. Mr. Yu has over 30 vears of
experience in business management, trading and investment. Mr. Yu graduated from the
University of International Business and Economics (¥I4MEEE 5 K E2) with a bachelor
degree in Economics. Mr. Yu later received a master degree from the University of British

Columbia in Education.

Mr. FU Lin, aged 49, is an executive Director and the chief executive officer of our
Company and was appointed to the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) on
I March 201 1. Mr. Fu has over 21 years of experience in business and capital operation
and is responsible for the overall management, business and strategic planning of our
Group. Mr. Fu graduated from Peking University (157 A2) with a bachelor degree
in Economics. Mr. Fu studied at the Graduates School of Chinese Academy of Social
Sciences (FBI4 @ HHEPr) and was awarded with a master degree in Economics; Mr.
Fu also attended an advanced management program at Harvard Business School, which

focused on skills in leading an organization.

Mr. YUE Zhigiang, aged 50, is an executive Director of our Company and was appointed
to the Board on | March 201 1. Mr. Yue has over 27 years of experience in mechanical
engineering and manufacturing plant operation, and is the general manager of our
subsidiary company, Tibet Glacier Mineral Water Co. Ltd. Mr. Yue studied at Shandong
University of Technology (I3 T2 K2 (now combined into Shandong University
(LB K E8)) in Machinery Production and obtained a bachelor degree. Mr. Yue was
appointed as the director of Tiandi Green on 25 December 2012.

Ms. MOU Chunhua, aged 51, is an executive Director of our Company and was
appointed to the Board on | March 201 1. Ms. Mou has over |7 years of experience in
business management, investment, merger and acquisition and financial management. She
is primarily responsible for our Group’s management, business development, strategic
planning and major decision making. Ms. Mou graduated from Southwest Jiaotong
University (FAR X AZ) with a master degree in Transportation Management
Engineering. Ms. Mou was appointed as the director of Tiandi Green on 25 December
2012.
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Mr. LIU Chen, aged 31, is an executive Director and authorized representative of our
Company and was appointed to the Board on | March 201 . Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. Liu gained experience in the areas of law and accounting. Mr. Liu graduated from
York University, Canada, with a bachelor of arts degree. Mr. Liu also studied full-time at

McMaster University, Canada, and obtained a master degree in Business Administration.

Mr. WONG Hak Kun, aged 59, is an executive Director of our Company and was
appointed to the Board on 8 December 2014. He worked for Carlsberg Brewery prior
to joining the Company. He was the Chairman of Carlsberg China from September 201 |
to March 2014, He served as the chief executive officer of Carlsberg Greater China from
March 2007 to September 2011, and as the deputy managing director of Carlsberg China
from January 2006 to February 2007. During the period between 2002 and 2006, in his
capacity of business development director of Carlsberg China, he led the merger and
acquisition team in expanding the company's production bases in the PRC. Mr. Wong has
more than 3| years of working experience in the fast-moving consumer goods industry, of
which more than 26 years were in the China beverage market. During the said period, he
held various senior management positions in top international beer companies including

Carlsberg and Bass Brewers.

Mr. Wong graduated from Hong Kong Baptist College (now Hong Kong Baptist
University) in 1978 with a Diploma in Business Management and received a Master of

Business Administration degree (full time) from Bath University, United Kingdom in 2001.
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Non-Executive Director

Ms. JJANG Xiaohong, aged 57, is a non-executive Director of our Company and was
appointed to the Board on | March 201 1. Ms. Jiang is also the vice general manager of
our subsidiary company, Tibet Glacier Mineral Water Co. Ltd, and is responsible for the
operation, quality control, equipment and production site management. She has over 27
years of experience in operational management. She graduated from Xinjiang Vocational
University (37528 T X 2) with a diploma in Economic Management, then from Jiangnan
University (LFAZ) (formerly known as Wuxi University of Light Industry (i5#8 T
AE) with a diploma of Brewery Engineering, and from Xinjiang University (3758 A £2)
with diploma of Analytical Chemistry.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Jesper Bjoern MADSEN, aged 61, joined our Group and was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of our Company on | March 201 . He is the
chairman of the nomination committee and also a member of the audit committee and

remuneration committee of our Company.

Mr. Madsen has been working with the Carlsberg A/S Group for over 22 years. He has
had the positions as the vice president responsible for overseas investments and markets,
general manager and managing director of Carlsberg Brewery Hong Kong Ltd and Chief
Operating Officer of Carlsberg Asia Pte Ltd. Mr. Madsen was the senior vice president of
Carlsberg Breweries A/S with responsibility for Asia, among other markets. Mr. Madsen
was during his tenure as the said senior president also a non-executive chairman, non-
executive vice chairman or non-executive director in a number of Carlsberg's subsidiaries
in Asia. Mr. Madsen obtained a master degree in Law from Copenhagen University,

Denmark and later studied Scottish/English Law at the University of Edinburgh, Scotland.

Mr. Madsen currently also serves as an independent non-executive director of D&O
Green Technologies Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of Bursa Malaysia (stock
code: 7204).
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Mr. LEE Conway Kong Wai, aged 60, joined our Group and was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of our Company on | March 201 . He is the
chairman of the remuneration committee and also a member of the audit committee and

nomination committee of our Company.

Mr. Lee served as a partner of Emst & Young for many years and held key leadership
positions in the development of such firm in China. Mr. Lee is a member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in Australia, the Association of Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Macau Society of Certified Practising Accountants. Mr. Lee
was appointed as a member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of
Hunan Province (F BIHIR & E#Z 8) in China since 2007. Mr. Lee received a Bachelor
of Arts degree in Business Studies from Kingston University (formerly known as Kingston
Polytechnic) in London and further obtained his postgraduate diploma in Business from

Curtin University of Technology in Australia.
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Mr. Lee currently also serves as a non-executive director and deputy chairman of Merry FEERBNETEBREZERERAA
Garden Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock (R &EBE R FTER_ET (ARG R5E  1237))
code: 1237). Mr. Lee currently also serves as an independent non-executive director of RERTESRBIER - TEERRBTER

the following companies listed in Hong Kong and China:

ZERABIERENMTE LR R RIRELIE

HWITEF T

Name of Listed Company Stock Code Place of Listing
LR AR ERE R A2 C 5 LR
Chaowei Power Holdings Limited 951 Main Board of the Stock Exchange
HBEE N ERERADA BB ER
China Modern Dairy Holdings Ltd. 1117 Main Board of the Stock Exchange
FEIRAMEERBR AT BB ER
CITIC Securities Company Limited 6030 Main Board of the Stock Exchange
RIEEFBRHBERAT BB ER
600030 Shanghai Stock Exchange

LBEHRZ B
GCL New Energy Holdings Limited 451 Main Board of the Stock Exchange
mEHERIERAR AR BB ER
GOME Electrical Appliances Holdings Limited 493 Main Board of the Stock Exchange
EXERZERARAA BB ER
NVC Lighting Holding Limited 2222 Main Board of the Stock Exchange
ETRAERARAT BB ER
West China Cement Limited 2233 Main Board of the Stock Exchange
FEIF R RAR AR BBBZATER
WH Group Limited 288 Main Board of the Stock Exchange
BEMNEBRERLDA BB ER
Yashili International Holdings Ltd 1230 Main Board of the Stock Exchange
B MERZRAR AR BB ER
China Rundong Auto Group Limited 1365 Main Board of the Stock Exchange
FEERAEEEER LA BBB R PTER
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Mr. Kevin Cheng WEI, aged 47, joined our Group and was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of our Company on | March 201 1. He is the chairman of the
audit committee and also a member of the remuneration committee and nomination

committee of our Company.

Mr. Wei is currently a managing partner of Fontainburg Corporation Limited, a corporate
finance advisory firm. Mr. Wei has served as chief financial officer from December 2007
to September 2013 and has served as director since November 2008 of IFM Investments
Limited (stock code: CTC), a New York Stock Exchange listed company headquartered in
Beijing. IFM Investments Limited was delisted from New York Stock Exchange in January
2015. From 2006 to 2007, Mr. Wei served as the chief financial officer of a Chinese solar
company listed on Nasdag. From 1999 to 2005, Mr. Wei worked in the internal audit and
risk management functions with Asia Pacific regional or global coverage for multinational
companies including LG Philips Displays International Ltd. (2003 to 2005) headquartered
in Hong Kong. From 1991 to 1999, Mr. Wei worked with KPMG LLP and Deloitte
Touche LLP in various audit and consulting roles between United States of America
and China. Mr. Wei graduated from Central Washington University in 1991, where
he received his bachelor's degree (cum laude) with a double major in accounting and
business administration. He is also a member of the American Institute of Certified Public

Accountant.

Mr. Wei currently also serves as an independent non-executive director of Wisdom
Holdings Group (stock code: 1661) and Nexteer Automotive Group Limited (stock code:
1316), both companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

So far as the Company is aware, none of the Directors have any relationship (including

financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship) with each other.
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TREBHE

The Board now presents this Corporate Governance Report in the Group's annual report

for the year under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to achieving and maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices to enhance Shareholders' value and safeguard Shareholders’ interests.
Accordingly, the Board has considered carefully the requirements of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code") set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and as described below,

has taken actions to further enhance corporate transparency and accountability.

The Board believes good corporate governance is one of the critical factors for achieving
sustainable long-term success. The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasize on the importance of a quality Board and its accountability to Shareholders.
The Board regularly reviews the corporate governance practices to ensure compliance
with the principles and code provisions as set out from time to time in the CG Code and

maintain the long-term health of the Company.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company had complied with the code provisions set

out in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2014.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board leads and supervises the overall direction and development of the Group's
business and affairs, with the objective of enhancing Shareholders’ value including
making and approving the Company's strategic implementation, considering substantial
investments, reviewing the Group's financial performance and developing and reviewing
the Group's policies and practices on corporate governance. The Directors are responsible
for, and has also delegated the chief executive officer the authority and responsibility to
oversee, the day-to-day management and operation of the Group. In addition, the Board
has established three Board committees and has delegated to these Board committees

various responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of references.
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Board Composition
As at the date of this report, the Board comprises of ten Directors in total, with six
executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent non-executive

Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. YU Yiping Wallace (Chairman)

Mr. FU Lin (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. YUE Zhigiang

Ms. MOU Chunhua

Mr. LIU Chen

Mr. WONG Hak Kun (appointed on 8 December 2014)

EESEAR

RARETRREY EF@RBTRKE
BRARWITES  —RIIFWTESL=A

BIUFNTES -

HITES
a—FREELE)
S £ (TR E)
EERiE
BRELL

ARKE

IRHEE(ZER_Z-EF+_ANR)

Non-executive Director FHTER
Ms. IANG Xiaohong EE 2+
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Jesper Bjoern MADSEN BEMEESE
Mr. LEE Conway Kong Wai FTHEEE
Mr. Kevin Cheng WEI RAREAE
There are three Board committees in the Company. The table below provides the RRAFEFERU=ZMEZED - TRIEHS
constituents of each of the committees. ESENEEEUTE ST AEENRA -
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee Committee
ENEES FHEES REZES
Mr. YU Yiping Wallace a—TEE M M
Mr. FU Lin (NE ¥t M M
Mr. Jesper Bjoern MADSEN EXE RS M M C
Mr. LEE Conway Kong Wai FRELE M C M
Mr. Kevin Cheng WEI RIS H C M M
Notes: Bisr
C Chairman of the relevant Board committees C BBRZEgNERE
M Member of the relevant Board committees M BWZEENKE
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The list of Directors and their role and function is available at the Company's and the
Stock Exchange's websites. Their profiles are set out in the section headed "Profile of

Directors and Senior Management” in this Annual Report on pages 44 to 49.

The Board noted that following the appointment of Mr. Wong Hak Kun as an executive
Director since 8 December 2014, the number of the independent non-executive
Directors has fallen below the minimum number required under Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules. The Company is seeking suitable candidate(s) to fill the vacancy and expects to
meet the said requirement pursuant to Rule 3.11 of the Listing Rules. The Company will

make further announcement(s) as and when appropriate.

Chairman and Chief Executive

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the chairman and the chief
executive officer should be separated and should not be performed by the same individual.
The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive of the Company are separate and
are assumed by Mr. Yu Yiping Wallace and Mr. Fu Lin, respectively. The Chairman’s
primary responsibilities include deciding on the meeting schedule and agenda, formulating
Board policies, ensuring Board effectiveness, promoting the Company and upholding the
Company's corporate governance standards. The Chief Executive has delegated authority
from, and is responsible to, the Board for managing the Group's business, including the

implementation of the strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board.

Operation of the Board

Al the six executive Directors are responsible for dealing with the business of the Group
in accordance with all applicable rules and regulations, including, but not limited to, the
Listing Rules. All Directors (including non-executive Director and independent non-

executive Directors) have been consulted on all major and material matters of the Group.

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs of the Group, including
convening Shareholders’ meetings, reporting their work in the Shareholders’ meeting,
implementing the Shareholders' resolutions, determining the Group's business plans and
strategies, formulating the Group's annual budget and final accounts, formulating proposals
for dividend and bonus distribution, and determining duties as conferred to it by the
Articles of Association of the Company. In discharging its responsibilities, the Board meets

and communicates regularly and acts in good faith, with due diligence and care.
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The Board meets regularly to review financial statements, material investments in new
projects, dividend policy, major financings, treasury policies and changes in accounting
policies. All Directors have access to board papers and related materials which are
provided in a timely manner. Directors have access to the advices and services provided
by the company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) with a view to
ensure that the procedures applicable to Board meetings, and all applicable rules and
regulations, are followed. Draft and final versions of the minutes of Board meetings and
Board committee meetings, drafted in sufficient detail by the secretary of the meetings,
would be circulated to the Directors for their comments and record. Originals of such
minutes, being kept by the Company Secretary, are open for inspection at any time upon

a reasonable notice period given by any Director.

If a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board, the
matters of which the Board determines to be material, the relevant Director will abstain
from voting on the relevant Board resolution in which he/she or any of his/her associates
have a material interest and that he/she shall not be counted in the quorum present at the

Board meeting.

Up to the appointment of Mr. Wong Hak Kun as an executive Director, the number of
independent non-executive Directors meets the requirements under the Listing Rules.
The Company has received from each independent non-executive Directors an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company

considers all of its independent non-executive Directors independent.

Under the respective appointment letters, all the current non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a period of three years from |
March 2014 unless terminated in accordance with the terms of the appointment letters.
Their appointment may be terminated either by the Company or by the Director by
giving three months’ written notice to the other party. All the current non-executive
Director and independent non-executive Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the coming annual general meetings of the Company in accordance

with the Articles of Association of the Company.

At each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or if their
number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) will retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to

retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three years.

ExeTHERe:  URAMBERER W
HEMBEAKRE REBK EZ@E &
ERRMETBRONE - EFEXHLEA
XS RETHEESERN - E27]
ERARRLRARE(TRARENNERLR
% - DRERESSRFRAEERRAR
ROGESET HERNEFALENE
EEeENESR AN ACENY
RERERAENESEX  UHREEH
Kk - FRSHLENEAHRARER
7 AIHEAEEREL AR RNEAEEM
KREIER -

REFHESENTERNSTRETRRES
SRRBEANNEER  ZEFHHEK
EEBMREARAEAEZNEBRESTSR
BRMERE  ATEst A\LRFZEZES
HEVEEAA ©

EEZEIRYRERNTESA - BUF
HTEENHATS LMRANHATE - A2
FERERBUFRTESRELMRAE
B3GBENFEELMERE - ALAR
RABBLIFATESTORBILAL

RESHREFMTES BN TESH
ZEE  RENZEHHRE-_T-NF=
A—BEFAH=F HERRZEZOER
BIERIBERERIN - RENZEHAHALRE
IMEBEEAH T EH=_EAETANM
BiE - SREFRTESRBUFNMTES
BHRBA R A AHERARN AR ERE
FAE LWFERIE - UEEET -

EBEBRRBFAGL ER=0-—NES
(BEABYF=EE AINRELED
BR=7—WAB)BRRET EESVE
EVEARVEB=FRRRBFRELHFER
£

Annual Report « £33 -2014 53




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TREBHE

The Board believes that the balance between executive and non-executive Directors
is reasonable and adequate to provide sufficient checks and balances that safeguard the
interests of the Shareholders and the Group. The non-executive Directors provide the
Group with diversified knowledge, expertise and experience. Their views and participation
in Board and committee meetings bring independent judgement and advice on issues
relating to the Group's strategies, performance, conflicts of interest and management
process, and ensure that the interests of all Shareholders are taken into account. Two of
the independent non-executive Directors possess the appropriate professional accounting
qualifications or related financial management expertise, which exceeds the requirements

under the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional Development

On appointment to the Board, Mr. Wong Hak Kun has received a comprehensive
induction package and training provided by the Company's legal advisor, covering business
operations, policy and procedures of the Company as well as the general, statutory and
regulatory obligations of being a Director to ensure that he is sufficiently aware of his

responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements.

The Company updates Directors on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance
and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices. The Directors
are regularly briefed on the amendments to or updates on the relevant laws, rules
and regulations. In addition, the Company and the Company Secretary have been
encouraging the Directors and other management to enrol in a wide range of professional
development courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules, Companies Ordinance/
act and corporate governance practices organized by professional bodies, independent
auditors and/or chambers in Hong Kong so that they can continuously update and further

improve their relevant knowledge and skills.

From time to time, Directors are provided with written materials to develop and refresh
their professional skills. The Company Secretary also coordinates, organises and arranges
seminars on the latest development of applicable laws, rules and regulations for the
Directors to assist them in discharging their duties. During the year, seminar materials,
articles and updates relating to the latest development of the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements have been provided to Directors. An in-house seminar
has been conducted by our legal adviser, a reputable international solicitors' firm, covering

the topic of connected transactions with case study under the Listing Rules.
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During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Directors participated in the following

training;

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. YU Yiping Wallace a— ek
Mr. FU Lin (¥t

Mr. YUE Zhigiang EERESE
Ms. MOU Chunhua BRELL

Mr. LIU Chen BARTE

Mr. WONG Hak Kun* FrHrt*
Non-executive Director FHITES

Ms. IANG Xiaohong ERE 2+
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Jesper Bjoern MADSEN BEMREE

Mr. LEE Conway Kong Wai FREEE

Mr. Kevin Cheng WEI FIEAE

* Appointed on 8 December 2014

A attending in-house training and/or seminars and/or conferences and/or forums

B: reading newspapers, journals, the Group's news, industry's news and updates relating to the

ongoing compliance obligations, corporate governance and other related topics, etc

Delegation by the Board

There is a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved to the Board for its
consideration and delegation. The Board has given clear directions to management as to
matters that must be approved by the Board before decisions can be made on behalf of

the Company.

To assist the Board in the execution of its duties and to facilitate effective management,
certain functions of the Board have been delegated by the Board to the Audit Committee
(the “Audit Committee”), Remuneration Committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and Nomination Committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of the Company which
were established with written terms of references in compliance with the Listing Rules.
The adopted terms of references comply with the code provisions as set out from time to

time in Appendix 4 to the Listing Rules.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee meets at least twice per annum. Its key responsibilities include:

to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment, reappointment
and removal of the external auditor, to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and where applicable, to handle any questions

relating to the resignation or dismissal of the external auditor;

to review and monitor the external auditor's independence and objectivity and the

effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable standard;

to monitor the integrity of financial statements of the Company and the Company's
annual report, interim report and related financial results (if prepared for
publication), and to review significant financial reporting judgments contained in

them; and

to review the Company's financial control, internal control and risk management

system.

All the three Audit Committee members are independent non-executive Directors. The

Chairman of the Audit Committee possesses the relevant financial management expertise

and experience. The committee members, together with our external auditor, met three

times during 2014 and discharged their principal responsibilities by:

56

reviewing the interim results and final results of the Group and the relevant financial
statements and reports and significant financial reporting judgments contained
in them prior to the approval by the Board and reviewing the external auditor’s

report and findings relating to the work that has been performed;

reviewing the external auditor’s audit plan and terms of engagement for the work

performed;

reviewing the independence and objectivity of the external auditor, and the non-

audit service fee payable to the exteral auditor; and

reviewing the effectiveness of the intemal control systems of the Group including

financial control, operational control, compliance control and risk management.
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Nomination Committee

Its key responsibilities include:

a)  to review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board on a regular
basis and make recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes to

complement the Company's corporate strategy;

b)  to recommend the Board on matters relating to selection, appointment or

reappointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors;

c)  to ensure sufficient biographical details of the nominated candidates are provided

to the Board regarding selection of Board members; and

d)  to assess the independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out the approach to achieve
diversity in the Board. Accordingly, selection of candidates to the Board is based on
a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience and qualifications, skills, knowledge and
length of service, having due regard to the Company's own business model and specific
needs from time to time. Taking into account the Company's corporate strategy and the
mix of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity needed in the future, the Nomination
Committee is comfortable with the existing structure, size, composition and diversity of
the Board.

Two meetings have been held by the Nomination Committee during 2014 and the

following work has been satisfactorily concluded:

a)  reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board;

b)  ensuring sufficient biographical details of Mr. Wong Hak Kun are provided to the

Board;

¢)  recommending the appointment of Mr. Wong Hak Kun as an executive Director to
the Board; and

d)  assessing the independence of the independent non-executive Directors.
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Remuneration Committee

Its key responsibilities include:

a)  to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's overall policy
and structure on remuneration of Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing such

remuneration policy;

b)  review and approve compensation payable to executive Directors and
senior management for any loss of office or appointment to ensure that such
compensation is consistent with the contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not

excessive; and

c)  to review and approve performance-based remuneration by reference to the

corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.

During 2014 the Remuneration Committee has considered and reviewed the existing
remuneration package of all the Directors and senior management. It is considered that
the existing terms of remuneration of the Directors and senior management were fair and
reasonable. Furthermore, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed and approved the
compensation payable to Mr. Wong Hak Hun (the newly appointed executive Director)
and to ensure that such compensation is consistent with the contractual terms and is

otherwise fair and not excessive.

The Company has adopted the share option scheme (the “Scheme™) on 7 September
2012. The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Board, at its discretion, to grant options
to selected eligible participants to motivate them and to optimise their performance
and efficiency for the benefit of the Group. No share option has been granted since the

adoption of the Scheme on 7 September 2012.
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The composition of the Board and the Board members' respective attendance in Board BE_T—WF+-_A=1+—HLFE &
meetings, general meetings, the Audit Committee meetings, the Remuneration Committee FENENERERENEFEEE KRR

meetings and the Nomination Committee meetings during the year ended 31 December Re BERZESgE FTHEEgEEK
2014 are as follows: REZEGEENERENT

No. of meetings attended/held

BHE BTEEYE

Audit Remuneration  Nomination

Committee  Committee ~ Committee

Board General meeting meeting meeting
meeting meeting B 40 RE
EEEeE BRRAE ZESSER ZESEEE ZRESE=R
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. YU Yiping Wallace a—TtsE 717 I/ N/A 2 22
TERA
Mr. FU Lin (D Vit 717 I/l N/A 22 22
TERA
Mr. YUE Zhigiang EEakt 5/7 o/l N/A N/A N/A
TERA TERA TERA
Ms. MOU Chunhua BREZT 6/7 o/l N/A N/A N/A
TERA TERA TERA
Mr. LIU Chen )= 717 I/l N/A N/A N/A
TERA TEA TiE A
Mr. WONG Hak Kun* TRExTE I N/A N/A N/A N/A
TEA TERA TERA TERA
Non-executive Director HHTEE
Ms. JJANG Xiaohong ZEI 7+ 717 I/ N/A N/A N/A

TEA TER TEA

Independent Non-executive Directors B U HEHTEE

Mr. Jesper Bjoern MADSEN BZBLE 77 /1 23 M 0
Mr. LEE Conway Kong Wai EEEEE 717 /1 33 22 2
Mr. Kevin Cheng WEI FIBKT 77 /1 33 0N 0
* Appointed on 8 December 2014 and attendance record since then * E-T-ME+ZANBZAEREFER G

i

During the year under review, the Chairman of the Company has held a meeting with REBEE  ARBFREEEBYIENTE
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of the executive Directors. ERIT-NRARTEZLRENEE

Annual Report « 3 - 2014 59




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TREBHE

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for the Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific
enquiries to all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
requirements set out under the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2014.
Specific employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information
have been requested to comply with the provisions of the Model Code. No incident of

non-compliance has been noted by the best knowledge of the Company.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and effective internal
control system of the Group. Our internal control system includes a well-defined
management structure with limits of authority which is designed for the achievement
of business objectives, safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or disposition,
ensuring proper maintenance of books and records for the provision of reliable and
timely financial information for internal use or publication, and ensuring compliance
with relevant legislations and regulations. In addition, the Group has established risk
management procedures to identify and prioritise risks for the business to be addressed
by management. During the year ended 3| December 2014, the Board has supervised a
review of the effectiveness of the internal control system and is satisfied with the scope of

review and the effectiveness of the system.

MANAGEMENT FUNCTION

The management team of the Company meets regularly to review and discuss with
the executive Directors on day-to-day operational matters, financial and operating
performance as well as to monitor and ensure that the management is properly carrying

out the directions and strategies pre-determined by the Board.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for keeping proper accounting books and
records and overseeing the preparation of accounts for each financial year/period which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at the
end of the financial year/period and the profit and loss for the year/period. The Directors
have adopted applicable International Financial Reporting Standards in all material respects,
selected appropriate accounting policies and then applied them consistently, and have
made judgments and estimates that they believe to be fair and reasonable. The Directors

use a going concern basis in preparing the accounts unless it is not applicable.

The Board acknowledges that a clear, balanced and timely presentation of financial
information is crucial in maintaining the confidence of Shareholders in the Company.
Reasonable disclosure of Company's financial position and prospects are provided in the
reports. Annual and interim results are published within three and two months after the

end of the relevant financial year/period, respectively.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group s set out in the section headed

“Independent Auditor's Report” on pages 74 to 75 of this Annual Report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance for its
Directors and officers covering the costs, losses, expenses and liabilities arising from the
performance of their duties. The insurance policy covers legal action against its Directors
and officers to comply with the requirement of the Code. During the year, no claim was

made against the Directors and officers of the Company.

SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for effective communication
with Shareholders. The Chairman of the Board and the sub-committees, or if he cannot
be present, fellow Directors and other management members will be made available to

answer questions at the general meetings.

Extensive information about the Group's activities is provided in this Annual Report,
the interim report and circulars which are sent to Shareholders in a timely manner and
are made available on the Company's website (www.5100.net). Our website serves
as a communication platform where company information including corporate profile,
corporate governance materials, announcements, circulars, business news and financial
reports are made available to the public. All Shareholders are encouraged to attend the
general meetings of the Company to understand the business of the Group from the

Directors and senior management in the general meeting.

The members of the Board will meet and communicate with Shareholders in the coming
AGM 2015 which will be held on Monday, 8 June 2015. The notice of the AGM 2015 will
be dispatched to all Shareholders not less than twenty clear business days. At the AGM
2015, the Chairman of the Board will demand for a poll and the Company's Hong Kong

branch share registrar will be appointed as the scrutineer for the vote-taking.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Company's Articles of Association, an extraordinary general meeting
shall be convened on the written requisition of any two members of the Company
deposited at the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by such
Shareholders, provided that such Shareholders held at the date of deposit of the written
requisition not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company as at the date
of deposit which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. If the
Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of deposit of the requisition duly
proceed to convene the meeting, the Shareholders themselves may convene the general
meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as those meetings which may be
convened by the Directors, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the Shareholders as a
result of the failure of the Directors in convening the said meeting shall be reimbursed to

them by the Company.

There is no provision allowing Shareholders to move new resolutions at general meetings
under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the Articles of Association of the Company.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to convene a
general meeting following the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph. As regards
the proposing of a person for electing as a Director, please refer to the procedures

available on the websites of the Company.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concemns to the Board by mail in
writing to the Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong at Room 3401, 34th
Floor, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

To ensure investors have a better understanding of the Group, our management is pro-
active in its investor relations initiatives. Our executive Directors and the investor relations
officers communicate with research analysts and institutional investors on an on-going
basis and meet with research analysts/investors after our results announcements, attend
major investors' conferences and participate in non-deal roadshows to communicate the

Company's financial performance and business strategy.
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During the year, our executive Directors and the investor relations officers have met with
a number of research analysts and investors, attended conferences as well as deal and

non-deal roadshows as follows:

Month Event

At ESE

March/April 2014 Attended six post results non-deal roadshow/
Investors luncheon/Investors conference

20144 3/4 BMEEERSMEG REETES /RE
EAE NG

May 2014 2014 Macquarie China Consumer Tour

2014457 WI4ERETEEBRITRE S

August/September 2014 Attended five post results non-deal roadshow/
Investors luncheon/Investors conference

2014589 A BMEEFRSMEE REETFES/RE
EMSeRRS

Other period of the year 2014 Attended over twenty analysts or investors

meetings and conference

20145 E At HAf BB TSOMMRREESZ LT G

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chow Wai Kit was appointed as the Company Secretary on | March 201 . During
the year ended 31 December 2014, Mr. Chow has taken not less than 5 hours of

appropriate professional training as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the independence of
the external auditor to ensure objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process
of the financial statements in accordance with applicable standards. Members of
the Audit Committee were of the view that the Company's external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, is independent and recommended to the Board to re-appoint it

as the Company's external auditor at the AGM 2015.

Annual audit fees of the financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014 paid or payable to the external auditor are approximately RMB7 million
(2013: RMB4.8 million).

COMPLIANCE OF THE DEED NON-COMPETITION

Tibet Water Resources Limited, Maple Essence Investments Limited, True Asset Holdings
Limited and Mr. Wang Peter Jian (collectively the “Controlling Shareholders”) have
entered into a deed of non-competition undertaking dated 14 June 2011 (the "NCU") in
favour of the Company. The Company and its Directors have made market enquiries and
nothing has come to the attention of the Company or its Directors that the Controlling
Shareholders are engaging in any business that may compete with that of the Group
in contravention of the terms of the NCU. The Company and its Directors confirmed
that the management of the Company has made verbal enquiries periodically with the
Controlling Shareholders, to which the Controlling Shareholders have responded that
they are not, or have not been, doing any business in competition with that of the Group
as prohibited under the NCU. In addition, each of the Controlling Shareholders has
made its annual declaration of compliance of the NCU for the year ended 3| December
2014 respectively, and the independent non-executive Directors of the Company have
also reviewed the enforcement status of the NCU, and confirmed that the Controlling
Shareholders have abided by the undertakings contained in the NCU.

Disclaimer

The contents of this section headed “Shareholders’ Rights” are for reference and disclosure compliance
purposes only. The information does not represent and should not be regarded as legal or other
professional advice from the Company to the Shareholders. Shareholders should seek their own
independent legal or other professional advice as to their rights as Shareholders. The Company disclaims
all liabilities and losses incurred by its Shareholders in reliance on any contents of this section headed
“Shareholders' Rights”.
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The Directors are delighted to present their report together with the audited consolidated

financial statements of Group for the year ended 3| December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in note | to the consolidated financial statements on page 84
of this Annual Report. There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's

principal activities during the financial year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in the
consolidated income statement and statement of comprehensive income on pages 80 to
81 of this Annual Report.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK4 cents per share (which
is equivalent to approximately RMB3.17 cents per share) to the Shareholders of the
Company whose names are listed in the register of members on 22 June 2015, amounting
to approximately RMB8| million, and the remaining retained earning approximately
RMBI,158 million.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements during the year in the land use rights and property, plant
equipment of the Group are set out in notes 7 and 8 to the consolidated financial

statements respectively to as set out on pages |17 to |19 of this Annual Report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 19 to the consolidated

financial statements on page 142 of this Annual Report.

The Company has adopted the share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 7 September
2012. The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Board, at its discretion, to grant options
to selected eligible participants to motivate them and to optimise their performance and
efficiency for the benefit of the Group. No share option was granted since the adoption

of the Scheme on 7 September 2012.

66 TIBET 5100 WATER RESOURCES HOLDINGS LTD. * #5100k ERZERER A 7

EEMAREAKEHE_T—NF+_]
=t BUEFENREAREEZGEMH
HwE -

ETEXK
ARBERREBRRLAR - TEMBLRNE
BERAFRF 84 AR BIMEME -
RUBEEAR  ARBETEZXHNIEEL
BRWE -

RERBNDE
AEEBHE_T-NF+-_A=T—HLHF
ENREHNAFREES ENEAN
mREEERER

EEEERAR-_Z-RF AT ZHAT
ARBIRRA MR IRE KRS Gk
Pl HEERERARE=H—1tD
RENARBN\T-—BETL RHETHER
BHEHOARET—BRTN\BET -

BEEE

AEEWITHERERDE  BERXE
RENNEBFBEIRERRFREII7TE
|19 BRYARE IS MRt 7 & 8 o

B
ARFRAFHERRAFRE 2ENES
BHS R 19 -

ARABRZE-—F AL BERAERE
B([%=tEl)) - ZAtEEEREFSANE
MEEZAERSEERBBRE  NHB
SEENRNREZRRALAE - FMER
AKE NG - AR=FT—_FAALAK
MZETE) - WARB R ERRE -




DIRECTORS’® REPORT
EFEHE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Articles of Association
or the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the

Cayman Islands, the Company's place of incorporation.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2014, the distributable retained earnings of the Company amounted
to RMBI2 million (31 December 2013: RMB39 million). As at 31 December 2014, the
share premium of the Company, amounted to RMBI,207 million (31 December 2013:
RMBI,207 million), is distributable to Shareholders subject to the solvency test and the

sanction of an ordinary resolution.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the past financial years,
as extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements and the Prospectus, is set
out on page 172 in this Annual Report. The summary does not form part of the audited

financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company or any of its subsidiaries of

the Company's listed securities during the financial year.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. YU Yiping Wallace (Chairman)

Mr. FU Lin (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. YUE Zhigiang

Ms. MOU Chunhua

Mr. LIU Chen

Mr. WONG Hak Kun (appointed on 8 December 2014)

Non-executive Director
Ms. JIANG Xiaohong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Jesper Bjoern MADSEN

Mr. LEE Conway Hong Wai

Mr. Kevin Cheng WEI

In accordance with the provision of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. YUE
Zhigiang, Ms. JIANG Xiaohong and Mr. Kevin Cheng WEI retire at the forthcoming AGM

2014 and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ PROFILES

The profiles of the Directors are set out on pages 44 to 49 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM 2015 has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2014, none of the Directors had or was deemed to have any interest
or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO™), which are required to be recorded in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DISCLOSEABLE INTERESTS OF SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE SECURITIES
AND FUTURES ORDINANCE

As at 31 December 2014, the following persons had an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the register required

to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

Long/short Capacity/Nature

BERSZRBERIBRENETIRER
@
R-Z—NE+-A=+—8 " TIALR
RIEEHFLAEKAEICHERTEERER
AIFEMNELMEC e AR R SRR R
R BEAERERIKE

Number of shares/ Approximate
underlying shares percentage
f%15,#EB8  of shareholding
BO®EE RESOEDL

Name position of interest

1 R/ %R 5/ ERitE

Tibet Water Resources Limited (Note ) Long position  Beneficial owner

FRKERER LR (M) e BEREAA

Maple Essence Investments Limited (Note 2) Long position  Interest of controlled corporation

mEREAR AR (KE2) R LB S

True Asset Holdings Limited (Note 3) Long position  Interest of controlled corporation

True Asset Holdings Limited (FiizE3)  #F& X EE N RS

Mr. WANG Peter Jian (also known as Long position  Interest of controlled corporation
Mr. WANG Jian Peter) (Note 3&4) & X EE R R

FEEE(ME3&4)

110,572,000 shares 4323%

[,110,572,0000 M 1n

[,110,572,000 shares 43.23%
[,110,572,000 A% A% 1

[,110,572,000 shares 43.23%
1,110,572,000 & A& n

110,572,000 shares 4323%

I,110,572,000 A% B 17
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Notes:

(I)  Tibet Water Resources Limited is held as to 98.67% by Maple Essence Investments Limited, which
is in tum held as to 90% by True Asset Holdings Limited. Tibet Water Resources Limited holds
[,110,572,000 shares in the Company.

(2)  Maple Essence Investments Limited holds 98.67% equity interest in Tibet Water Resources Limited
and is therefore deemed to be interested in the |,110,572,000 shares in the Company. Maple
Essence Investments Limited is held as to 90% by True Asset Holdings Limited and as to 10% by
Eminent Partner Limited. True Asset Holdings Limited is wholly owned by Mr. WANG Peter Jian
while Eminent Partner Limited is owned as to 50% by Mr. YU Yiping Wallace, a director of the
Company, and as to 50% by Ms. LI Xiao Bing, spouse of Mr. YU Yiping Wallace.

(3) True Asset Holdings Limited holds 88.8% equity interest in Tibet Water Resources Limited through
Maple Essence Investments Limited. Therefore, True Asset Holdings Limited is deemed to be

interested in 1,110,572,000 shares in the Company.

(4)  True Asset Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. WANG Peter Jian. Therefore, Mr. WANG
Peter Jian is deemed to be interested in |,110,572,000 Shares in the Company in which Tibet
Water Resources Limited is interested. For the purpose of the SFO, the spouse of Mr. WANG
Peter Jian is taken to have a duty of disclosure in Hong Kong in relation to the said I,110,572,000
Shares. The interest disclosed by the spouse of Mr. WANG Peter Jian is that of Mr. WANG Peter
Jian which is attributed to her pursuant to the SFO for disclosure purposes. Nevertheless, she has

no interest, legal or beneficial, in those shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 3| December 2014, the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company were not aware of any other person (other than Directors and the chief
executive of the Company) who had, or was deemed to have, interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party,
and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at

the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the financial year had the Company or any of its subsidiaries entered
into any arrangement which enables the existing Directors or chief executive to have
the right to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Company or any other legal entities.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Other than operating a Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and participating
in the state managed retirement benefit scheme in the PRC, the Group has not operated

any other retirement benefits schemes for the Group's employees.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is set up by the Board on the

basis of their merit, qualification and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration Committee, having
regard to the Group's operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

During the financial year and up to the date of this report, no Director is considered to
have interests in a business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or

indirectly, with the business of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the financial year, sales to the Group's five largest customers and purchases from
the five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 64% and 66% of the total sales
and total purchases for the year, respectively. The Group's largest customer and supplier
accounted for approximately 26% and 27% of the total sales and total purchases for the

financial year, respectively.

During the financial year, none of (i) the Directors or any of their associates, or (i) any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, owned more than 5% of the
Company's issued share capital), had any interest in the Group's five largest customers and

suppliers.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive Directors, an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive Directors are independent of

the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE COMPANY’S INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The utilisation status of the net proceeds from the Company's initial public offering is set

out on page 4| to 42 of this Annual Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the reasonable
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained sufficient public float of not less
than 25% of its Shares in the hands of the public in accordance with the Listing Rules as at
the latest practicable date of the issue of this Annual Report.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting to approximately
RMB100,000 (2013: approximately RMB60,000).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company had reviewed the Group's annual results for the

year ended 31 December 2014 and provided advices and comments thereon.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 were
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, who will retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming

AGM 2015 and, being eligible, will offer itself for re-appointment.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The transactions summarized in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2014 also constituted connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules. As those
transactions were all de minimis transactions, they were exempt from all the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders” approval requirements under Chapter [4A

of the Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board

Yu Yiping Wallace

Chairman

24 March 2015
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To the shareholders of Tibet 5100 Water Resources Holdings Ltd.
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tibet 5100 Water Resources
Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group") set out on
pages 76 to 171, which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 3|
December 2014, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BYREERE

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 3| December 2014, and of the Group's
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

OTHER MATTERS

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any

other person for the contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

HEEEEEX
As at 31 December
R+=A=+-—H
Note 2014 2013
B &E —E-mEF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTIT
Assets BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Land use rights T e 7 32,141 32,865
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREB 8 661,256 695,523
Intangible assets BREE 9 176,724 1983810
Goodwill SRS 10 721,139 721,139
Deferred income tax assets RIEFEHEE 21 2,524 8,398
Prepayments B RIE 15 5,035 4177
Other receivables and other assets Hip B R KM EE 16 15,112 —
Investment in an associate REE QR E 12 601,263 —
2,215,194 1660912
Current assets RBEE
Trade receivables FEWE 13 332,284 453432
Prepayments FERFIE 15 31,059 36,482
Other receivables and other assets Ha el &= 16 28,594 66,526
Inventories FE 17 65,321 54,087
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 18 763,409 985416
1,220,667 1,595,943
Total assets MmEE 3,435,861 3,256,855
Equity i
Equity attributable to owners of the Company FAREE NGRS
Share capital EREN 19 21,363 21,363
Share premium R E 19 1,206,829 1,206,829
Reserves G 20 210,182 195,525
Retained eamings B
— Proposed final dividends —BRARER S 33 81,064 161,799
— Others —HAfth 1,158,083 911,954
2,677,521 2,497,470

76 TIBET 5100 WATER RESOURCES HOLDINGS LTD

c BEESIOKERERERALT




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
HEEEREX

As at 31 December

R+=A=+-—H
Note 2014 2013
B &E —E-mF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTIT
Non-controlling interests FERER 273,098 231,983
Total equity EREE 2,950,619 2,729,453
Liabilities afE
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Borrowing &3 26 91,549 —
Deferred revenue RIEWA 23 30,850 21,749
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFMGHAE 2 35,835 50218
158,234 71967
Current liabilities REEaE
Trade payables (AN 24 117,340 72,766
Deferred revenue and advances received from
customers REWA RFERE P 2 60,395 22929
Enterprise income tax payable JER PG — 19,855
Accruals and other payables HERER REMER K 25 49,657 144,191
Borrowing & 26 99,616 195,694
327,008 455,435
Total liabilities BEAR 485,242 527,402
Total equity and liabilities EakaEEE 3,435,861 3,256,855
Net current assets FREBEE 893,659 1,140,508
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDERS 3,108,853 2,801,420

F4E 171 EWMERZEHEIRKAOEK

#Bin o

The notes on pages 84 to 171 are an integral part of these financial statements.

BEEEEN T RE=-A-THHABEH
RET6E 17 NI HRRIKERT °

The financial statements on pages 76 to |71 were approved by the Board of Directors on
24 March 2015 and were signed on its behalf.

FU Lin {43 LIU Chen 318
Director % Director 2%
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BALANCE SHEET
EERRA

As at 31 December

R+=A=+-—H
Note 2014 2013
B &E —E-mEF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTR
Assets BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RIB A RHERE [ — —
Loans to subsidiaries ERTHELR I 1,103,853 1,053,050
1,103,853 1,053,050
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments T RIE 15 542 563
Other receivables H sk 6 4,426 60,823
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 18 320,145 442745
325,113 504,131
Total assets nEE 1,428,966 1,557,181
Equity and liabilities ERRaE
Equity attributable to owners of the Company FAREE ARG RES
Share capital AR 19 21,363 21,363
Share premium R E 19 1,206,829 1,206,829
Reserves G 20 (63,116) (67,247)
Retained earnings B 12,296 38,695
Total equity RERAH 1,177,372 1,199,640
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BALANCE SHEET
EERMEX

As at 31 December

W+=A=+-H
Note 2014 2013
B e —E-mF —E-=F
RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®ETR ARETT

Liabilities =i

Current liabilities REAR

Accruals and other payables HIRERAREMERT 25 251,594 357,541
Total liabilities mafmE 251,594 357,541
Total equity and liabilities EakEELAE 1,428,966 1,557,181
Net current assets FRBEE 73,519 146,590
Total assets less current liabilities REERTRBEE 1,177,372 1,199,640
The notes on pages 84 to 171 are an integral part of these financial statements. F84E 17| EWM T RZF M B MR AKX

#Bin o

The financial statements on pages 76 to 171 were approved by the Board of Directors on EEgER T -hF=-A-THEER

24 March 2015 and were signed on its behalf. RET6E 7| BRMBEREAIRERET -
FU Lin {33 LIU Chen &I8
Director % Director 2%
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT — BY FUNCTION OF EXPENSE
HEFEE - R 25

Year ended 3| December

BEt-A=+—-HLFE

Note 2014 2013
PisE —E-mE —ET-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETF T ARBTFT
Revenue Y as 6 772,537 786,856
Cost of sales HHE AR 28 (288,488) (210954)
Gross profit EF 484,049 575902
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHER 28 (114,319) (131,941)
Administrative expenses THEHR 28 (81,405) (74217)
Other gains, net HAMG - FHE 27 171,782 159,713
Operating profit RERE 460,107 529457
Finance income sl 13,978 24,427
Finance costs BBER (9,870) (4,210)
Finance income, net B - F 30 4,108 20,217
Share of profit of an associate ik NCIF b 12 1,263 17,525
Profit before income tax BRAT 1S B AT A E 465,478 567,199
Income tax expense FriEHiEHR 3 (80,864) (106,284)
Profit for the year FERE 384,614 460915
Profit attributable to: PEAE R :
— Owners of the Company —AREEBA 343,499 441,280
— Non-controlling interests — IR R 41,115 19,635
384,614 460915
Earnings per share for profit attributable to FAREE AEMGEFIE
owners of the Company BREF
— Earnings per share (basic and diluted) -BRERN(EXREE)
(RMB cents per share) (BRAR%SZ) 32 13.37 17.18
Dividends R E 33 81,064 161,799

F8AE 7| BN T AZETHEREMAR

#in o

The notes on pages 84 to 171 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HETENEZ

Year ended 3| December

BEt-A=+—-HLFE

Note 2014 2013
P & —E-mEF —F-=F
RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®ETR ARETT

Profit for the year FENE 384,614 460915
Other comprehensive loss: Hit2HES !
ltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss AR EF 72 B i) E H
Foreign currency translation differences SNETEERR 20 (766) (23,340)
Other comprehensive income for the year, FEHMEEKE
net of tax MBRBLE (766) (23340)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEL2EKR 383,848 437,575
Attributable to: BER:
— Owners of the Company —ARAHEE A 342,733 417,940
— Non-controlling interests — RS 41,115 19,635
Total comprehensive income for the year FEAZEKS 383,848 437,575

The notes on pages 84 to 171 are an integral part of these financial statements.

F84E 7| BN T AZETHEREMARK
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
e E R

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAEBAEE
Non-
Share Share Retained controlling Total
Note capital premium Reserves earnings Total interests equity
(E Bx  RiOEE i ErkE a4 FEREER  BE4R

RMBOOO ~ RMBOOD ~ RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO
ARBTL ARETL ARETL ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR

At | January 2013 R=8-=%
-A-H 23631206829 177,781 796309 2202282 — 20082
Proft for the year ERHE - - - 441,280 441,280 19,635 460915
Foreign currency
translation differences MEMEER — - (23340) - (23,340) - (23,340)

Total comprehensive income ~ FEZ AN REH
fo the year - @) M8 4179 9635 437575

Appropriations to statutory  REVEE R

surplus reserve NES — — 41,084 (41,084) — — —
Dividends K& — — — (122.752) (122.752) — (122.752)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-RINBAF — — — — — 212,348 212,348
At 31 December 2013 R-Z8-z%
TZA=+-H 21363 1,206,829 195,525 1073753 2497470 231,983 2,729,453
Profit for the year FENA — — — 343,499 343,499 41,115 384,614
Foreign currency
translation differences PMEREER — — (766) — (766) = (766)

Total comprehensive income ~ FEZE K&
for the year or = = (766) 343,499 342,733 41,115 383,848

Appropriations to statutory  REBUAE R

surplus reserve NEE - — 15423 (15423) — — —
Dividends B8 - - —ee) (16268 — (16
At 31 December 2014 R-Z-m%
+ZA=t+-H 21,363 1,206,829 210,182 1,239,147 2,677,521 273,098 2,950,619
The notes on pages 84 to 171 are an integral part of these financial statements. F£84Z 171 BN AZEH B REAEK
e o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
LEELTRER

Year ended 3| December

BET-A=t-BLEE

Note 2014 2013
et —2-ImF —T-=F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETL
Cash flows from operating activities RETHHRER
Cash generated from operations REEFHELNTS 34 666,614 467719
Interest received E4HIE 7,563 19,070
Income tax paid ERATEHR (119,620) (121,947)
Net cash generated from operating activities RERBELNRSTE 554,557 364,842
Cash flows from investing activities REZTHHRER
Acquisition of a subsidiary, WE—RNB LD E
net of cash acquired (MBREKENRS) 36 (51,000) (253614)
Purchases of property, plant and BEVE BERXE
equipment (“PP&E") ER VS (18,158) (8,688)
Purchases of available-for-sale financial BEAHNESREE
assets (“AFS") ([t ESREE]) (600,000) (415,455)
Proceeds from sale of AFS HEAHNECREEMGHE 617,850 424077
Loan granted to third parties RIE=FHER (125,500) (110,000)
Loan repayments received from a third party BRE=FMETER 162,581 50,000
Investment in an associate REE D AR E 12 (600,000) (224,400)
Amounts paid to third parties EREZHFAE (220,000) (285427)
Amounts received from third parties BERE=AFE 220,000 285427
Decrease in term deposits EBERAR S 30,231 505,000
Increase in term deposits TE R AL M (30,000) (405,000
Net cash used in investing activities RERBMAN T FE (613.99) (438,080)
Cash flows from financing activities RETHRER
Repayments of borrowing from government ERHFER = (50,000)
Dividends paid to shareholders BERRERE (162,682) (122,752)
Net cash used in financing activities BEZHMARL TR (162,682) (172.752)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents BEeRREEEUHRDEE (222,121) (245,990)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FOReLALFED 985,416 1,232,327
Exchange translation losses on cash and RehBHeFEMELRX
cash equivalents 114 (921)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FEXEERBELEEY 18 763,409 985416
The notes on pages 76 to 171 are an integral part of these financial statements. £T76ZE 17 BRI T AZFHBRERAAEK

7R o
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the Companies
Law as an exempted company with limited liability on 8 November 2010. The
address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Company is an investment holding
company. The Group are engaged in production and sales of premium bottled
mineral water product and highland barley beer product in the People’s Republic of
China (the "PRC"). As detailed in Note 12, on 5 November 2014, the Company,
through a wholly-owned subsidiary, acquired 20% equity interest in Highland
Natural Water which is principally engaged in production and sales of bottled and

barrelled highland natural water products.

The Company's shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange since 30 June 201 I

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), unless otherwise
stated. These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board on
24 March 2015.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently

applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS"). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, which

are carried at fair value.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgment in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed

in Note 4.

In accordance with the transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and Audit” as set out in
sections 76 to 87 of Schedule |1 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), the consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the
applicable requirements of the predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) for

this financial year and the comparative period.

22 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(a)  New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The following standards have been adopted by the Group for the first time for the

financial year beginning on or after | January 2014:

Amendment to IAS 32, ‘Financial instruments: Presentation’ on offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities. This amendment clarifies that the right of set-off must
not be contingent on a future event. It must also be legally enforceable for all
counterparties in the normal course of business, as well as in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy. The amendment also considers settlement mechanisms.
The amendment did not have a significant effect on the Group's financial

statements.

Amendments to IAS 36, ‘Impairment of assets’, on the recoverable amount
disclosures for non-financial assets. This amendment removed certain disclosures
of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (“CGU") which had been
included in IAS 36 by the issue of IFRS |3. It also enhanced the disclosures of
information about the recoverable amount of impaired assets if that amount is
based on fair value less costs of disposal. The amendment did not have a significant

effect on the Group's financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)

(a)  New and amended standards adopted by the Group (continued)

Amendment to IAS 39, ‘Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement’
on the novation of derivatives and the continuation of hedge accounting. This
amendment considers legislative changes to ‘over-the-counter’ derivatives and the
establishment of central counterparties. Under IAS 39 novation of derivatives to
central counterparties would result in discontinuance of hedge accounting. The
amendment provides relief from discontinuing hedge accounting when novation
of a hedging instrument meets specified criteria. The Group has applied the
amendment and there has been no significant impact on the Group's financial

statements as a result.

IFRIC 21, ‘Levies, sets out the accounting for an obligation to pay a levy if that
liability is within the scope of IAS 37 ‘Provisions'. The interpretation addresses what
the obligating event is that gives rise to the payment a levy and when a liability
should be recognised. The Group is not currently subjected to significant levies so

the impact on the Group is not material.

Other standards, amendments and interpretations which are effective for the

financial year beginning on | January 2014 are not matenial to the Group.

(b)  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations
are effective for annual periods beginning after | January 2014, and have not been
applied in preparing these consolidated financial statements. None of these is
expected to have a significant effect on the consolidated financial statements of the

Group, except the following set out below:
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)

(b)  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (continued)

IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, addresses the classification, measurement and
recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities. The complete version of
IFRS 9 was issued in July 2014. It replaces the guidance in IAS 39 that relates
to the classification and measurement of financial instruments. IFRS 9 retains
but simplifies the mixed measurement model and establishes three primary
measurement categories for financial assets: amortised cost, fair value through
‘other comprehensive income’ (OCI) and fair value through P&L. The basis of
classification depends on the entity's business model and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset. Investments in equity instruments are required
to be measured at fair value through profit or loss with the irrevocable option at
inception to present changes in fair value in OCl not recycling. There is now a new
expected credit losses model that replaces the incurred loss impairment model
used in IAS 39. For financial liabilities there were no changes to classification and
measurement except for the recognition of changes in own credit risk in other
comprehensive income, for liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss.
IFRS9 relaxes the requirements for hedge effectiveness by replacing the bright line
hedge effectiveness tests. It requires an economic relationship between the hedged
item and hedging instrument and for the ‘hedged ratio’ to be the same as the one

management actually use for risk management purposes.

Contemporaneous documentation is still required but is different to that currently
prepared under IAS 39. The standard is effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after | January 2018. Early adoption is permitted. The Group is yet to assess
IFRS 9's full impact.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)

(b)  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (continued)

IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ deals with revenue recognition
and establishes principles for reporting useful information to users of financial
statements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash
flows arising from an entity's contracts with customers. Revenue is recognised when
a customer obtains control of a good or service and thus has the ability to direct
the use and obtain the benefits from the good or service. The standard replaces
IAS 18 ‘Revenue’ and IAS Il ‘Construction contracts and related interpretations.
The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2017

and earlier application is permitted. The Group is assessing the impact of IFRS 15.

There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective that

would be expected to have a material impact on the Group.

2.3 Subsidiaries

2.3.] Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable retumns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated

from the date that control ceases.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.3.] Consolidation (continued)

(a)  Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of
the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. |dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest's proportionate share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable

net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured
to fair value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such re-

measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance
with IAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its

subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the fair value
of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the

difference is recognised directly in the income statement.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEBERER

TESTRERMEA)

23 MEBLQAFE)
231 AHHE)
(@) EEEH

AEBERAKBESEBTAHIEK -
WEMEARMERNRERREME
REE RUMBIMAEBEAMEL
BERNEEMETRENDAE
B FERREERTENIARER
RELAMEEXAENLAAEE-
REBEHEMBBOABNEER
FEENEERRAEE  NFEK
BRHNAA(EENE - ARERE
BRI EER D BESIFERE
a2 b B PR AR AR UE 7 R R I B B R
B ER S REDRRE 7 TR
PR o

WEEMBR AR ELF S -

B A HOBEBET WS KA
AN BER K E B Sk
HERREEBSRNRAABEEHT
B AREMEELNEMKRER
BRERDTHER -

AEERWBERMOAABEERRK
TEZNETAIRKE - REBRE
ATERIE 39 REBEXRENK
RRENDABEERESHNEBR
HEAM 2R TR o DB AER
MRAREBHAENFIE  MEKE
ERES AR -

FrEg s aE B T AR SRR AR
BB REMEANREESTFE
BERKBERBN LA BEBEMR
BUBEEFEN AL BENER
ARRIIEREE - A ERNE O
BIFRA  aR K FT AT B ST AR A AR
HEBRERNAZERE S AREB M
BRAIMA BRI EEFEAA(EE:"
AEREREERNNBRER -

Annual Report * 3 - 2014 89




SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.3.] Consolidation (continued)

(a)  Business combinations (continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with

the Group's accounting policies.

2.32 Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost also
includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are

accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon receiving
dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements of the investee's net assets

including goodwill.

24  Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence but not
control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting, Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognised at
cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor's
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group's
investments in associates include goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate, any difference between the
cost of the associate and the Group's share of the net fair value of the associate’s

identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

24  Associates (continued)
If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in OCI

is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in OCl is recognised in OCI
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the
Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the

amount adjacent to ‘share of profit/(loss) of an associate’ in the income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions between
the Group and its associate are recognised in the Group's financial statements
only to the extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed where

necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in associates are recognised in the

income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.5  Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the intemnal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of
the operating segments, has been identified as the steering committee that makes

strategic decisions.

2.6 Foreign currency translation

(a)  Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in RMB, which is the Group's presentation currency. The functional
currency of the operational entities located in the PRC is RMB, and the Company's
functional currency is HK dollar (“HKD").

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in

the consolidated income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings, payables and cash and
cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated income statement within ‘finance

income, net’.

(c)  Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

() assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the

closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)  Group companies (continued)

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the

transactions); and

(i) all resutting exchange differences are recognised in OCl.

2.7  Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss. Historical cost includes expenditure that is

directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income

statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost less
accumulated impairment losses of each asset to their residual values over their

estimated useful lives, as follows:

Useful lives
Buildings 12 to 40 years
Machinery 9tol5 years
Vehicles 3 to 8 years
Others 3 to 20 years

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,

at the end of each reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount
if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.10).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the
carrying amount and are recognised within ‘Other gains, net" in the consolidated

income statement.

Construction-in-progress (the “CIP") represents buildings, plant and machinery
under construction or pending installation and is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes the costs of construction and acquisition
and capitalised borrowing costs. No provision for depreciation is made on CIP until
such time as the relevant assets are completed and ready for intended use. When
the assets concerned are available for use, the costs are transferred to property,
plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated

above.

2.8 Intangible assets

28] Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and represents the excess of
the consideration transferred over the Group's interest in net fair value of the net
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the fair

value of the non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination
is allocated to each of CGU, or groups of CGU, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill
is allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the

operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in
use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any impairment is recognised immediately

as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

LpE Edlka

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.8 Intangible assets (continued)

2.82 Trade name

Trade name acquired in a business combination is recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. Trade name has a finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method

to allocate the cost of trade name over their estimated useful lives of 18.2 years.

2.83 Distribution network

Distribution network acquired in a business combination is recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. The distribution network has a finite useful life of 8 years
and is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using

the straight-line method over the expected life of the distribution network.

2.9  Land use rights

All'land in the PRC is state-owned and no individual land ownership right exists.
The Group acquired the rights to use certain land and the premiums paid for such
rights are recorded as land use rights, which are stated at cost and amortised over

the use terms of 50 years using the straight-line method.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed

for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1l Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and available for sale. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. The Group

only has loans and receivables as at year end 31 December 2014.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current
assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets. The Group's receivables
comprise “trade receivables” (Note 13), “other receivables” (Note 16), “cash
and cash equivalents” (Note 18) in the consolidated balance sheet. Regular way
purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date — the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1l Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in
this category or not classified in any of the other categories. They are included
in non-current assets unless the investment matures or management intends to
dispose of it within 12 months of the end of the reporting period. Available-for-sale
financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value. Changes in the fair value of
monetary and non-monetary securities classified as available for sale are recognised
in other comprehensive income. When securities classified as available for sale are
sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are
included in the income statement as “other gains, net’. Interest on available-for-sale
secunities calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in the income
statement as part of other gains. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognised in the income statement as part of other income when the Group's

right to receive payments is established.

2.12  Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the

event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.

2.13  Impairment of financial assets

(a)  Loans and receivables

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial

asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.13  Impairment of financial assets

(a)  Loans and receivables (continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation, and where observable data indicate that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears

or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the

consolidated income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor's credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated income

statement.

(b)  Available-for-sale financial assets
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective

evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists the cumulative loss — measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is
removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period,
the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available for sale increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the

consolidated income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.13  Impairment of financial assets

(b) Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the security below its cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any
such evidence exists the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity
and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated
income statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the consolidated

income statement.

2.14 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined using the weighted average method. The cost of finished goods
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable

selling expenses.

2.15 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are

presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for

impairment.

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include
cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid

investments with original maturities of three months or less.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.17 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to
the issue of new ordinary shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net

of tax, from the proceeds.

2.18 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired
in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current

liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at

amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.19 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest

method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs
of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will
be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and

amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

220 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially

ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing

costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which

they are incurred.

221 Deferred revenue and advance received from customers

Deferred revenue and advance received from customers represent the
consideration allocated to the goods to be delivered in future. Deferred revenue
is stated at the consideration allocated less the amount previously recognised as

revenue upon the delivery of goods to the wholesaler (Note 2.25).

2.22 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is
recognised in the consolidated income statement, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in OCI or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also

recognised in OCl or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax retumns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax

authorities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

222 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related

deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences

can be utilised.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary differences arising
from investments in subsidiaries, except for deferred income tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Generally the Group is unable to control the reversal of the temporary difference
for associates. Only where there is an agreement in place that gives the Group the

ability to control the reversal of the temporary difference not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable

entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

223 Employee benefits

The employee benefit expenses mainly include salary, bonus, allowances and other
expenditures incurred in exchange for the employee services. All employee benefit
obligations are recognised during the period when the services are provided,
and charged to the consolidated income statement or included in the cost of the

related assets.

(a)  Pension obligations - defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior

periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered pension
insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has
no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expenses when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or

a reduction in the future payments is available.

(b)  Housing funds, medical insurances and other social insurances

Employees of the Group in the PRC are entitled to participate in various
government-supervised housing funds, medical insurance and other employee social
insurance plan. The Group contributes on a monthly basis to these funds based on
certain percentages of the salaries of the employees, subject to certain ceilings. The
Group's liability in respect of these funds is limited to the contributions payable in

each period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.24 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably

estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will
be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect

to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The

increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.25 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for
the sale of goods in the ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown
as net of value-added tax, retums, rebates and discounts and after eliminating sales

within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities as described
below. The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration

the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.25 Revenue recognition (continued)

(a)  Sales of goods — wholesale and retail

The Group manufactures and sells a range of bottled mineral water products and
beer products in the wholesale and retail market. Sales of goods are recognised
when a group entity has delivered products to the distributors/retailers, the
distributors/retailers have full discretion over the channel and price to sell the
products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the distributors/
retailers’ acceptance of the products. Delivery does not occur until the products
have been shipped to the specified location; the risks of obsolescence and loss have

been transferred to the distributors/retailers.

Sales of bottled mineral water products to certain distributors or end customers
are made in form of water cards (“Water Cards Sales Arrangement”). Under the
Water Cards Sales Arrangement with the distributors, the distributors sell the
water cards to the end customers and use the logistics network, which is designed
by the Group with the Group's long-term cooperative logistics suppliers, to deliver
bottled water to the designated locations at the request of the end customers
when the water cards are redeemed before the expiry dates; and relevant logistics
expenses are charged to the Group. Sales of goods under the Water Cards Sales
Arrangement are deferred as the Group has ultimate obligations towards the card
holders. Sales of goods under the Water Cards Sales Arrangement are recognised
when the water cards are redeemed by the end customers, or when the water

cards are expired, whichever is earlier.

(b)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. When a loan and
receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted at the original effective
interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loan and receivables are recognised using the

original effective interest rate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

226 Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group will comply

with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are

intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are included in non-
current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to the consolidated income

statement on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

2.27 Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are
retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the

consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.28 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a liability in
the Group's financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved

by the Company's shareholders.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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LpE Edlka

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: cash flow and fair value
interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to

minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

(a)  Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The functional currency of a majority of the entities within the Group is RMB and
most of the transactions are settled in RMB. However, the Group is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from its cash exchange transactions, which are primarily

denominated in HKD.

To mitigate the impact of exchange rate fluctuations, the Group continually
assesses and monitors its exposure to foreign exchange risk. During the year ended
31 December 2014, management did not consider it is necessary to enter into
any hedging transactions in order to reduce the exposure to foreign exchange risk,
because the exposure, after netting off the assets and liabilities subject to foreign

exchange risk, is not significant.

As at 31 December 2014, if RMB had weakened/strengthened by 5% against HKD
with all other variables held constant, the total net assets of the Group would
have been approximately RMB54,922,000 (2013: RMB60,777,000) higher/lower
respectively, mainly as a result of foreign exchange translation of the financial
statements for the Company and its Hong Kong subsidiary whose functional
currency is HKD; the impact to the Group's net profit for the year as a result for

foreign exchange risk is insignificant.

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group has no interest-bearing borrowings as at 31 December 2014. The
Group's long-term borrowing from government was interest-free, expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk. If the interest rate strengthened/weakened by
5%, the fair value of the borrowing would decrease/increase by RMB 418,000/RMB
421,000 respectively.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)  Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Credit risk arises from cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables and other receivables. The carrying amounts of cash
and cash equivalents, trade receivables and other receivables, represent the Group's

maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to those financial assets.

Substantially all of the Group's cash and cash equivalents are held in major financial
institutions located in the PRC including Hong Kong Special Administrative Region,
which management believes are of high credit quality. There was no recent history

of default of cash and cash equivalents from such financial institutions/authorities.

The Group's trade receivable due from a single external customer is approximately
RMB289,550,000 representing 87% of the balances of the Group's trade receivables
as at 31 December 2014 (2013: RMB426,243,000, 94%). The Group has set up
a long-term cooperative relationship with this customer. In view of the history of
business dealings made with the customer and the sound collection history of the
receivables due from it, management believes that there is no material credit risk
inherent in the Group's outstanding receivable balance due from this customer. The
Group's other receivables are due from other third parties. The Group performs
ongoing credit evaluations of the financial condition of its customers/debtors on
an individual basis, taking into account their financial position, past experience
and other factors, and generally does not require collateral from the customers/
debtors on the outstanding balances. Based on the expected realisation and timing
for collection of the outstanding balances, the Group maintains its provision for
doubtful accounts and actual losses incurred have been within management's
expectation, and management believes that there is no material credit risk inherent
in the Group's outstanding receivable balances. In the event that the single external
customer terminates its business relationship with the Group and the Group fails to
collect the outstanding trade receivables due from it, the Group's financial position

and operating results will be adversely affected.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)  Credit nisk (continued)

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has unsecured loans to two third parties
amounting to RMBI 1,500,000 and RMB14,000,000 (31 December 2013: the
Group has unsecured loan to two third parties amounting to RMB50,000,000
and RMB10,000,000) which are due on 30 June 2015 and |8 September 2019
respectively. Management performed credit evaluations of the financial conditions
of the counter parties and considered that these loans will be repaid on time with
no collectability risks; accordingly, management concluded that no impairment
provision was necessary. In the event that the counter parties could not make
payments on time or default their payments, the Group's financial position and

operating results will be adversely affected.

There was no other financial asset carrying a significant exposure to credit risk.

(c)  Liguidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash, the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the
ability to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying
businesses, the Group's treasury function allows flexibility in funding by maintaining

adequate cash and cash equivalents.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HERBERER S

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)  Liguidity risk (continued)

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's liquidity position based on

the expected cash flows.

The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity

groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the

contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
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undiscounted cash flows. BHHTENRTBERERE
Less than | year 1-2 years
—FHUR —EMFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTR
Group KEE
At 31 December 2014 R-Z-mE+=A=+-—H
Borrowings fam 105,000 95,000
Trade payables (Note 24) ERE S5 (HiFE24) 117,340 —
Other financial liabilities HiemaR 30,113 —
At 3| December 2013 R=T-=%+=A=+-—H
Borrowings & 200,000 —
Trade payables (Note 24) FEREH (FiIFE24) 72,766 —
Other financial liabilities Hihera sk 104,258 —
Company NN
At 31 December 2014 R=Z-mFE+=A=+-—H
Other financial liabilities (Note 25) Hpemasd (Pa25) 251,594 —
At 31 December 2013 R-Z-=F+=-A=+-—H
Other financial liabilities (Note 25) Hivemark (MieFs) 357,541 —
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability
to continue as a going concem in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to

reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends to be paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,

issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group's capital is mainly from equity funding and borrowing from government
for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis of
the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as borrowings divided by total capital. Total
capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the consolidated balance sheet plus

borrowings.

The gearing ratios as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 were as follows:
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation

As of 31 December 2014, there was no financial instrument carried at fair value.

As at 31 December 2014, the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets

and liabilities carrying fixed interest are as follows:
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Carrying Value Fair Value
fREE AREE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARETT

Borrowing f&
Amount due from a third party R —EE=H

191,165 191,217
25,500 24,799

As at 31 December 2013, the carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and

financial liabilities approximated their fair values due to their short maturities.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are

believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year are addressed below.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(@)  Depreciation and amortisation

The Group's management determines the residual value, useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual residual value and useful lives of plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation charge where residual value or useful
lives are less than previous estimates, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold. The current

estimated useful lives are stated in Note 2.7.

(b)  Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant
judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in

the period in which such determination is made.

Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such differences will
impact the recognition of deferred tax assets and taxation in the periods in which

such estimates are changed.

Dividends derived from the Company's subsidiaries in the PRC earned after
| January 2008 are subject to withholding tax at the rate of 10%. The Group
reassessed its needs to make distributions out of its subsidiaries in the PRC. As a
result, withholding income tax has been provided for the undistributed profits to

the extent they are expected to be distributed in future.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences are recognised as
management considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be available

against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(©

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment in

Impairment of goodwill

accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note 2.8.1. The recoverable
amounts of CGU have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates (Note 10). The table below summarised
the key assumptions used in the goodwill impairment review and the impacts to

the value-in-use calculations upon movements of the key assumptions:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HERBERER S

e R ()

() FEERE

AEBRM 28 AN S BRE
FARHEBROLBREMRAE - BE
EEEM(ReEESEM]) M kE
CHEERFABENENEZEE A
At ERBRMAE (T 10) - TRE
AEEREEHRTANEZRS
TERFEHEUGCHAEETENTE

rE

Decrease of

[tems Assumptions used Movement of key assumptions value-in-use
HHE Fr R IERREH EREERD
(RMB’000)

(ARET7T)

Compound annual revenue growth rate  5.00% ~ 7.00% Decrease of 1% 64,079

BaFRaERE B 1%

Long-term growth rate 4.00% Decrease to 3.00% 46,322

REERE WD E3.00%

Gross margin 41.459%~45.77% Decrease by 5% 58,478

EME B 5%

Pre-tax discount rate 15.06% Increase to 16.06% 91,639

BIEIEERS SEINE 16.06%

Government subsidy income Continued government subsidy Discontinued government subsidy 88,567

income from 2015 onwards
B - RFRFERN
G ON

IEASREIETON

Based on management's analysis, no goodwill will suffer any impairment upon
happening of any one of the above mentioned movement of key assumptions.

(d)

Management assesses the impairment of trade and other receivables according

Provision for impairment of trade and other receivables.

to the trade and other receivable’s aging, management's prior experience and
customers’ conditions as well as applying management's judgments and estimates
when determining the impairment to be recognised. Based on management's best
estimates, there was no impairment noted for the trade and other receivables as at
31 December 2014. Where the basis of judgements and estimates is different from
the initial assessment, such differences will impact the provision for impairment and

the carrying values of the trade and other receivables in the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEBERER

5  SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 2RER
Management has determined the operating segments based on the reports ERERBEETG AR IELERARE
reviewed by the Board that are used to make strategic decisions. MERNREET THEHE
The Group has two business segments, being the production and sales of (I) AEEREENHE (1) SmMEER
premium bottled mineral water product, and (2) highland barley beer product. IKEMM Q) TEREBE MM EXS
GEE
The Board assesses the performance of the operating segments based on review of EEENKE  BEREAKRENH
their revenue, cost of sales and gross profit. EHHRE DR RTEITAIE
The segment information provided to the Board for the reportable segments for BE_ZT-—MF+_A=1+—BILF
the year ended 3| December 2014 is as follows: B EFgREUNERAIZRDH
HHBERIT
Mineral
Water Beer Inter-segment
products products  elimination Group

BrkEm WEEm 2HEME FRE
RMB000 ~ RMBO000 ~ RMBO000  RMB000
AR®TR AR%®TR AR®TR AR%TR

Segment revenue 7 EER 446,895 329,945 (4,303) 772,537
Cost of sales HEMR (99,326) (192,776) 3614 (288,488)
Gross profit for the year FEEF 347,569 137,169 (689) 484,049
Income tax expense FREHMEx 65,030 15,834 — 80,864
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 21,819 52,582 — 74,401
Segment assets DEEE 1,404,607 1,807,094 (107,026) 3,104,675
Deferred income tax assets RGN EE 2,524
Corporate assets rEEE 328,662
Total assets BEE 3,435,861
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HERBERER S

THERE)
BE-F-=f1+-A=1t—HLHF
B EFSREHNEEIZ2®RI

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5

The segment information provided to the Board for the reportable segments for

the year ended 31 December 2013 is as follows:
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HOBERDT -
Mineral

Water Beer Inter-segment
products products elimination Group
BRKER  WEER 2 HEME T&E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARBTT ARETR
Segment revenue pa: 16y 647,445 142,893 (3482) 786,856
Cost of sales HERAR (121,772) (92,156) 2974 (210954)
Gross profit for the year FEEN 525673 50,737 (508) 575902
Income tax expense GRS 94946 11,338 — 106,284
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH 20429 25497 — 45926
Segment assets DEEE 1178761 | 664337 (104701) 2738397
Deferred income tax assets BIEFGHERE 8398
Corporate assets rREE 510,060
Total assets BEE 3256,855




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEBERER

6 REVENUE 6 W
Revenue from external customers is derived from the sales of premium bottled HNERE P R R B SH B IR R R K
mineral water product and beer product. Breakdown of the revenue is as follows: Em&RBEmR - WaAAMT :

Year ended 3| December

BE+-HA=t—-HLEE

2014 2013
—E-mEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARETT

Sales of mineral water product BB RKE miHSE 442,592 647,445
Sales of beer product BEEmIAE 329,945 139,41 |
772,537 786,856
Revenue from external customers of the Group was derived in the PRC for the BE_Z-—MER-F—=F+2H
years ended 3| December 2014 and 2013 =T RIEFE  TEEHINDEFH

W R EHE -

Approximately |3% of the revenue was derived from sales to one single customer BHE-ZT-—MF+-_A=1+—BItHF
for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: 41%). B #13% (ZZ—=F : 41%) 0

AR EHE-MINEEPAHE

7  LAND USE RIGHTS - GROUP 7 ITHERAE-AXEER

Year ended 3| December

BE+t-A=t—HLFE

2014 2013
—E-F “E—=F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETTT

At beginning of year F10 32,865 1,239
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 36) Wi — R M B A A (T3 36) — 31,990
Amortisation charge (Note 28) BEER(ME28) (724) (364)
At end of year 32,141 32,865
The Group's interests in land use rights represent operating lease assets. All of the ARBELHERENRERREELEHESR
Group's land use rights are located in the PRC and each has a lease period of 50 E o AKEMRA T ERREELNP
years. - HEHRHBS0F -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HERBERER S

8 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP 8 NE - BERSZE-T5E
Construction
Buildings Machinery Vehicles Others in progress Total

RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO0O0  RMBO00O
AR®TR AR®TR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARETR

At | January 2013 R=2-=%-f-H

Cost R 39,365 258361 1233 47,093 40,577 386,629

Accumulated depreciation 2TE (7943) (61,534) (410) (10,630) — (80517)
Impairment (a) U (2) - 2311 - - - 2311
Net book amount REFE 31422 194516 823 36463 40,577 303,801

Year ended 31 December 2013 HzoE-=f

TZA=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount FUREFE 3140 194516 823 36463 40577 303801
Acquistion of a subsidiary (Note 36) 4t —F B2 A (Hi3E36) 82370 333909 790 547 310 417926
Additions AE 2259 2503 - 188 4880 9,850
Transfer upon completion ST A8 7413 2511 — (9924) —
Depreciation charges (Note 28) HEBA(HT28) (3.190) (30543) (174) (2,147) - (36,054)
Closing net book amount ERREFE 120274 502916 1439 35051 35843 695,523
At 31 December 2013 R-E-Z%+ZF=t-H
Cost A 137936 668913 2731 4862 35,843 894045
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (17,662) (163,686) (1292) (13571) — (196211)
Impairment (a) FfE () — 311 — — 311
Net book amount REFE 120274 502916 1439 35051 35843 695523
Year ended 3| December 2014 Bz-Z-mf

TZB=t+-HLEFE
Opening net book amount FNREFE 120,274 502916 1,439 35,051 35,843 695,523
Additions hE 7,362 2519 206 3216 4021 17,324
Transfer upon completion TS = 6,221 — — 621) —
Depreciation charges (Note 28) HEBR(HT28) (5209 (43,752) @17 313) — (51,591)
Closing net book amount EXRREFE 122427 467,904 1,328 35,954 33,643 661,256
At 31 December 2014 R-E-NmE+=A=1-H
Cost A 145,298 677,653 2937 51,838 33,643 911,369
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (22,871) (207,438) (1,609) (15,884) = (247,802)
Impairment (a) HfE () — @311 — — — @311
Net book amount REFE 122427 467904 1,328 35,954 3643 661,256
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEBERER

8

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP (CONTINUED)

(@

Certain idle machineries with the cost amounting to RMB2,978,000
were considered obsolete before 2012, and an impairment provision of
RMB2,311,000 had been made accordingly based on the assets' fair value

less costs to sell.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment has been charged to the

consolidated income statement as follows:

8

ME - BERRBE-FEE(E)

@)

RZE—ZF5  RABARE
2,978,0007CH) & T E R HAR
EEE UYRBEENAAE
BEREENAERELDARE
2311,000TCRRE R

nE - BERRBFECREA
FERME - FEWOT

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t—HLFE

2014 2013

—E2-mEF —E-=F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TR ARETTT

Cost of sales HEMRA 47,782 33367
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHER 71 58
Administrative expenses THEMR 3,738 2,629
51,591 36,054

As at 31 December 2014, no significant property, plant and equipment had
been fully depreciated (2013: nil).

As at 31 December 2014, the Group was in the process of applying for
registration of the ownership certificates for certain of its buildings with an
aggregate net book value of approximately RMB 23,127,000 (2013: RMB
86,413,000). The Board is of the opinion that the Group is entitled to

lawfully and validly occupy or use these properties.

There was no interest capitalised in assets under construction for the year
ended 31 December 2014 (201 3: nil).

R-_E-—NFE+-_A=+—H"
BMEEAME  BERREER
THE (ZZ—=% &) -

RZZE—WF+=-A=+—8H"
AEEEREEDFENARE
23,127,0007C (ZE—=%F: AR
#86,413,0007T) K& TEFHRE
WEMEREEEL EEERA
REBEESEEMEANKER
ZEME

HE-Z-MNFE+-_A=+—H
IHFE BEERIRENEF
8 (ZE—=F M) o

5N
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HERBERER S

9 BFEEE-T5KE

Trade Distribution
Name Network Total
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRT AR®TR AR%Tn
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE-Z2-—=F%
+ZA=+—-HBLEE
Opening net book amount FOREFE — - -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 36) Wi — R M8 2 R (BT =T 36) 58,200 151,100 209,300
Amortisation charge (Note 28) BER(ME28) (1541) (8949) (10,490)
Closing net book amount FRREFE 56,659 142,151 198,810
Year ended 3| December 2014 BE-_Z-NF+=-A=+—H
HFE
Opening net book amount FYREFE 56,659 142,151 198,810
Amortisation charge (Note 28) BIER(ME28) (3,198) (18,888) (22,086)
Closing net book amount FRREFE 53,461 123,263 176,724

Amortisation of approximately RMB 3,198,000 (2013: RMB 1,541,000 is included
in the “Administrative expenses” and RMB 18,888,000 (2013: RMB 8,949,000) is

included in “Selling and distribution expenses” in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEBERER

10

GOODWILL 10 B
As at 31 December
R+=A=t+—8H
2014 2013
—E2-mE —T-=fF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARETT
Goodwill BE 721,139 721,139
The goodwill of RMB721,139,000 was generated from acquisition of a controlling AR ®721,139,000 7T #) 7 B E &£ R
stake in Tiandi Green in PRC in 2013 (see Note 36). Tiandi Green was viewed as _E-CZFEPRKRET RHMEEH
one CGU. The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-in-use ElRE(RKIEE36) « RibAxBHER A
calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial —BREELEN - REELEUM
budgets approved by management covering an eight-year period. Cash flows AlEeBENERNEREENTEE
beyond the eight-year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates. R B EEREREEEM]EN

BET\FHHENMBEREENHANR
cRERR - BEN\FHENRER
EfEAEEHERERMER -

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations in 2014 and 2013 are as _E-NFER_ZE-=FFERAEEN
follows: AEEANEZRENT
2014 2013
—2-mF —T-=F
Compound annual revenue growth rate BEFWR=ERR 5.00%~7.00% 6.00%~10.10%
Long-term growth rate REERXK 4.00% 4.00%
Gross margin EE 41.45%~45.77% 4390%~46.50%
Pre-tax discount rate BATARR X 15.06% 15.76%
Continued in the future Continued in the future
Government subsidy income DEGEEEE N RRFE RARFHE
Revenue growth rate and gross margin are based on past performance and WHEEERLENMRGBEBERE
management's expectations of market development. The long term growth rates LEBEHMSRENTERTE - 7
used are estimated with reference to industry forecasts. The discount rate used is AMERHERETIZZTERAMG
pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the business. e FTBEMBREAKRAMER X

MR LTS R RV E LR o

The directors are of the view that there was no impairment of goodwill as at 31 EERAR_Z—NMER-_ZT—=F
December 2014 and 2013 TZA=T-HRBUELRRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HERBERER S

[1 INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

(@) Investments in subsidiaries

I REBARNKRERCKEARR
HHNER—AKQF
@) RHBATINRE

As at 31 December

Rt=—A=+-A
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARETT

Investments, at cost; & B
Unlisted shares JE TR

* Amount less than RMB500.

(b)  Summarised financial information on a subsidiary with material non-
controlling interests
Set out below are the summarised financial information for Tiandi Green

that has non-controlling interests which is material to the Group.

Summarised balance sheet

1 SFPRARES00TT

(b) FAEERFEREZN-BHELT
WM BERBE
TXEINEAEEMSAEEBEAF
ER BRI R AR BNM AR -

EEREXHE
As at As at 31
3| December December
2014 2013

R=B-mEF R-FT=F
+=A=t-RA +ZA=t+—A
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
ARB TR ARBTR

Current #E

Assets BE 480,121 305,705
Liabilities =R (174,816) (231,873)
Total current net assets BREEEFE 305,305 73,832
Non-current ERE

Assets BE 605,631 637,493
Liabilities = (130,656) (48516)
Total non-current net assets BIERBEEFE 474,975 588977
Net assets BEFE 780,280 662,809
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEBERER

Il INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY I RHEBATNRERCQME AR

(CONTINUED) HHER-KAF (&)

(b)  Summarised financial information on a subsidiary with material non- by BHEEAFZREZN-BHE
controlling interests (continued) DR BERBE(E)
Summarised income statement FIEZBZ

From 9 July

2013 (date of

acquisition) to

Year ended 31 December
31 December 2013
0014 R-T—=F

S + AR

—E-QmF (WeHE B E)
t=-A=t-B =®-F—=F
LFE +-A=+—H

RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
AR®T R ARBTT

Revenue WA 329,945 142,893
Profit before income tax BR PSR AR 133,306 67,438
Income tax expense ST (15,834) (11,338)
Profit after tax B AE 117,472 56,100
Other comprehensive income Hofth 2 [ s = —
Total comprehensive income PEWGER 117,472 56,100
Total comprehensive income allocated DECEIFERIERE

to non-controlling interests PHEKEG BT 41,115 19,635
There is no dividend paid by Tiandi Green in 2014 and 2013. AFEER_T-—NFR_-F

—ZFIERMRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HERBERER S

Il INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Summarised financial information on a subsidiary with material non-

controlling interests (continued)

RBABNRER DM E QTR

HHER-KAF (&)

(b) BEERFERERN-EHE
DR BERBE(E)

Summarised cash flows HEREME
From 9 July
2013 (date of
acquisition) to
Year ended 31 December
3| December 2013
2014 (T —=F
K +ANE
—E-mEF (KEEH)
+=-A=+—H E_T—=F
tFE +t-A=1t—H
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
ARBTR ARBTFT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHRALSR
Cash generated from operations KeEENRE 228,643 103413
Interest received EVE RSN 361 3420
Income tax paid B FET (23,683) (25,452)
Net cash generated from operating activities REFBHELNRSFHE 205,321 81,381
Net cash used in investing activities REGSMANE2FE (16,710) (3,652)
Net cash used in financing activities RETHMANREFE — (150,000)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash RERREEEY
and cash equivalents 2,/ (hD)FE 188,611 (72,271)
Cash and cash equivalents on 9 July 2013 R-ZZE-=FtANA
(date of acquisition) (KERH)HRE K
ReESEY — 205386
Cash and cash equivalents on | January 2014 R-ZZE-HF—A—B®
Re kRS SEY 133,115 —
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year/period RER/HRNEE K
REEEY 321,726 133,115

The information above is the amount before inter-company eliminations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEBERER

1 INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY Il RHEBATNKREROME QTR

(CONTINUED) HHER-KAF (&)
(b)  Summarised financial information on a subsidiary with material non- (b) BEERFEREZN-—BEKE

DR BERBE(E)
RZZE-—ME+-A=+—8H"
AEEEENBRARAMNEEMN
T~

controlling interests (continued)
The following is a list of significant subsidiaries of the Group as at 3|
December 2014:

Place/date of incorporation/

type of legal entities

Company name imALLY/ RS/ Issued/paid-in capital Effective interest held Principal activities

Na4E ERRERE BRf/BARE RRfRER IEE

Indirectly held: 014 013 014 013

BikEAE: Z8-[E “R-ZF Z§-PBF TCf

Tibet Zhongji fiahua PRC/I January 2004/Limited USD16,000,000 USD16,000000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Industry Co, Ltd iabifty company 16,000,000 %70 16000000 %7 REBR

EETEEEERER wE/-FEME-A-8/
ARAT ARAT

Tibet Glacier Mineral PRC/31 October 2005/ RMBI18,000,000 RMB1 18,000,000 100% 100%  Bottled mineral water
Water Co, Ltd Limited liabiity company ARE 1180000007  AKH 1180000007 manufacturing and sales

Bk B BERA wE/-ERRETA=T-B/ SERHERKRRK

ARAT

Bejing 5100 Enterprise PRC/13 July 2007 /Limited RMBI,000,000 RMBI,000,000 100% 100%  Bottled mineral water market
Planning Club Co, L lablity company ARE1000000% AR 10000007 operation and management

FRE-TERERE wE/ZERLELATZR/ BB THEERER
BRWERAA BRAR

Tibet Glacier Mineral PRC/2I April 2010/Limited RMB3,000,000 RMB3,000,000 100% 100%  Bottled mineral water
Water Marketing Co, Ltd. ~ lability company ARM3000000%  AR®30000007 marketing, promotion,

Tk BTk B8/-3-3ERA-T-B/ distribution and retailing
BRAE BRAA BH R DHR

TEORBRK

Tibet Tiandi Green Beverage PRC/26 April 2009/Limited RMB200,000,000 RMB200,000,000 65% 65%  Beer manufacturing and sales
Development Co, Ltd. labiity company AE200000000%  AR% 2000000007 BEEERHE

mEAGEARER BERHAERRSR
BRAT BRAT

Wealth Keeper Ltd. Hong Kong/30 October HKDI HKD!I 100% 100%  Investment holding

2012/Lirted liablity company | &% | REBR

E#/_F-ZEtA=TH/

BRAW
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HERBERER S

[1 INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

(c)  Loans to subsidiaries

The loans to subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014 were unsecured and
interest free, which were denominated in HKD and RMB. The Company will

not request for the repayment of these loans in the next |2 months after 31

December 2014,

I RHEARNKRERGOKEARR

HOER -

(©)

KT (&)

eI 2 AR E R
RE-NE+ZA=+—HRKH
BRAlRENEROAETRA
REFE) ABERRRE - K
RABTEBRR T N4
TZA=t—BRNT_@AR

EERSEN -
12 INVESTMENTS IN AN ASSOCIATE - GROUP 12 REEQRNRE
As at 31 December
R+=A=t+—-H
2014 2013
=t Lk —F-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR
Opening net book amount FHREFE — 595,000
Additions (b) NE (b) 600,000 —
Share of profit FE(L T 1,263 17,525
Gain on remeasurement of previously ZAFERANENTE
held interests (Note 27) Yas (B 27) = 3,909
Foreign currency translation difference INETEER — (10,934)
Change from associate to subsidiary (a) ANEIEE b al(a) = (605,500)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 601,263 —
(@) In 2012, the Group acquired 35% equity interests in Tiandi Green. In 2013, @ E_T—Z%F FEERETX

the Group acquired additional 30% equity interests in Tiandi Green and
obtained control of Tiandi Green with the total 65% equity interests held.
The carrying value of the previously held 35% interest as at acquisition date

was treated as a disposal of an associate (Note 36).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEBERER

12 INVESTMENTS IN AN ASSOCIATE - GROUP (CONTINUED)
(b)  On5 November 2014, the Group acquired 20% equity interests in Highland

Natural Water, a company specialising in the production and sale of bottled
and barrelled highland natural water products, for cash consideration of RMB
600,000,000. Notional goodwill of RMB 540,527,000 has been identified as a

result of this investment.

Details of net assets acquired and goodwill arising from the acquisition of Highland

Natural Water are as follows:

REEQNRNRE(E)

by RZZE—WF+—AHB - &%
LA A B 600,000,000 7T 89 57
SREWESRERAK20%H)E
= ZAREMEERBEERE
MBERRANKER - AItIA
RERCDEZINERZZERA
R 540,527,000 7T °

B FEERERBSRRAKE
ROBBEMNHEBDOT

As at 5 November

2014
(date of acquisition)
R-E—WF
+—HEH
(WEEEH)
RMB’000
ARBTR
Purchase consideration: BERE:
— Cash paid -BfH2 600,000
Less: share of fair value of net W E(LFTEEFEER
assets acquired (see below) LABE(RTX) (59/473)
Goodwil Bk 540,527
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INVESTMENTS IN AN ASSOCIATE - GROUP (CONTINUED)

The goodwill is attributable to Highland Natural Water's strong position and

profitability in the sales of water products in the market, which cannot be separately

recognised as an intangible asset.

RBERRNRE(E)

mmE EMESLRAFES A
T EBRASELEE

As at 5 November

Fair value of net assets acquired: WEEEENAAEE: 2014
(date of acquisition)

R-Z2-HmF

+—-AEH

(k8 B )

RMB’000

AR¥ET T

Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 111,572
Inventory =E 15,764
Trade and other receivables & WUE 55 3R B EL A B R 68,829
PP&E nE - BER& 391,827
Land use right T e AR 37,360
Intangible assets B EE 196,535
Trade and other payables FERTE 53 R E A TR (159,745)
Borrowings B (270,000)
Dividend to original shareholders FE R AR SR AR B (64,700)
Deferred tax liabilities BEERAR (30,076)
Net assets acquired iR EE 297,366
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e

LpE Edlka

INVESTMENTS IN AN ASSOCIATE - GROUP (CONTINUED) 12 REEATNREE)
Set out below is the associate of the Group as at 31 December 2014, which, in the TXF#HA-ZZE—NF+-_A=+—
opinion of the directors, are material to the Group. The associate below has share BASENMENR ESRREY
capital consisting solely of ordinary shares. AEEBEKRN THMERTHERE
BELRRARA

Place of business/ % of

country of ownership

incorporation interest Measurement
Name of entity 3.0} 74 ERRERE Principal activities method
BERAH EEaitpe A E BRETL FTEXRK FTERE
Tibet Highland Natural China 20 Manufacturing and distribution Equity

Water Co,, Ltd H of water product e

=R BUER D H
RAKBRATF] KEm

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interest in the associate.

Summarised financial information for an associate
Set out below are the summarised financial information of the Group's associate —

Highland Natural Water, which is accounted for using the equity method.

I EEREENBE R OEEE R
ARG -

BEADNBENEE
TXFHAREBEREE QA
AAKNHBERE - Eﬁ%%ﬁ
ENER ©

ao}
@
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12 INVESTMENTS IN AN ASSOCIATE - GROUP (CONTINUED) 12 REEATNREE)

Summarised balance sheet

EERERYE

As at 31 December

2014
R-ZE—WEF
+=ZA=+—H
RMB’000
ARBTR
Current RE
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 38,323
Other current assets H R EE 37,144
Total current assets RBEELR 75467
Borrowing & (15,000)
Other current liabilities HibRBaE (164,152)
Total current liabilities mBRERER (179,152)
Non-current ERE
PP&E ER 398,693
Other long-term assets HitnREBEE 231,408
Total non-current assets ERBEELTE 630,101
Borrowing &R (135,000)
Other long-term liabilities HitREIGE (87,733)
Total non-current liabilities FEnRBEERSE (222,733)
Net assets REE 303,683
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12 INVESTMENTS IN AN ASSOCIATE - GROUP (CONTINUED) 12 REEATNREE)
Summarised statement of comprehensive income 2HBSERBE

Highland Natural Tiandi Green

Water From | January

From 5 November to 9 July 2013

(date of acquisition) (date of
to 3| December  deemed disposal)

2014 Rz

BRRAK BT =F

B-E-DF —A—HZE

t+—REH +tANA

(KERH)ZE (RIELE

+t=A=+-AH f9H 5)

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARETT

Revenue A 29,323 164,599
Pre-tax profit for the period HIA IR AT AR 7,479 62,519
Income tax expense FTERiAx (1,162) (12,447)
Post-tax profit for the period BR8N 6,317 50,072
Other comprehensive income Hit2E R = —
Total comprehensive income ZHEHKRETE 6,317 50,072

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements

of the associates (and not the Company's share of those amounts) adjusted for

differences in accounting policies between the Group and the associates.

M EBEH kB R R

A BWATAE

PIERIA (L IR R BUEZFHBNNDER)
ERARERE RS AR ZBEREN

EREHAE -
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12 INVESTMENTS IN AN ASSOCIATE - GROUP (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of summarised financial information

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to the carrying

amount of the Group's interest in an associate:

RBELNTNRE(#E)
BRMBEERNE R
REIIBEMBENAREER—H
B2 N RS R EE A SR -

From 5 November
2014

(date of acquisition)

to 31 December 2014

f’=—Z-—mF
+—AAH
(KR H)
E-F-MF
+=A=+-A
RMB’000
ARBT R

Net assets on 5 November 2014 R-E-NE+-FAA
(date of acquisition) (WEBHNEERE 297,366
Profit for the period AR 6317
Closing net assets HIREBEFE 303,683
Interest in associates (20%) WREEE A B R (20%) 60,736
Goodwil kS 540527
Carrying value REE 601,263
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13

TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP

13

EHESHR-H~EE

As at 31 December

Trade receivables due from third parties

Less: Provision for impairment of receivables

FEWE =TT YL E 53K
R MR R E R

R+=—A=+—~H
2014 2013
—E—F —F—=
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARBEFTT
332,284 453432
332,284 453432

Trade receivables represent amounts due from third party customers with good

credit history and low default rates.

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group's trade receivables were all

denominated in RMB. The aging analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

B E 7 3R 15 R S R aC 8k R A &
HRENE=TTRPHIFA -

RZE-—HFRZT—=F+2A
=+—H FAEEHNEKE S FTHEU
AREEE - BIKE ZRORER DT
(I

As at 31 December

W+=A=t+—H
2014 2013
—B-mE —F=%
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT
Within 6 months 6fEAMA 147,890 318,529
Over 6 months but within | year HiReEABIHER F 699 82910
Over | year but within 2 years il FEMER2F 182,267 51,595
Over 2 years B2 F 1,428 398
332,284 453,432

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, no trade receivables were impaired and

provided for, the carrying amounts of the above trade receivables approximated

their fair values.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying amounts

of trade receivables mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral as

security.

RZE-—NFER=ZZT—=F+=A
=t+—B BEAAEKRESFRE
RERE LREKESRNEREE
HEANEEES

KEABMNEREERR D LEEK
EHNERE  FREYEREE
AR E R -
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HERBERER S

[4 CREDIT QUALITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS - GROUP AND
COMPANY

(@)  Financial assets neither past due nor impaired

14 ERMEENFEEE-ZKERAE

NG

(2)

The contractual credit terms based on written sales contracts with customers

are range from | to 6 months.

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

can be assessed by reference to the nature of counterparties or to historical

information about counterparty default rates:

ABHEERENEHEE
ANEEREREZPNEEHE
EAH NF—EREAR -

AREHMEABERENSREENE
BEEEN2EH NN ERERE
AL RV S B RUETTRI -

As at 31 December

R+=B=+-H
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-mF —T-=%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
Trade receivables EWESZ R ARET T ARBETFTT
— Group | —-F14 5,324 —
— Group 2 —%24 20,859 318,173
26,183 318,173
As at 3| December
R+=B=+-H
Group Company
r5E Y N
2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-ME -—T--F ZB-MF —T-=F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
Other receivables HbEWR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR
- Group | -£14 28,244 60,000 — 60,000
- Group 2 -%24 15,462 6,526 4,426 823
43,706 66,526 4,426 60,823

Group | —new third parties/related parties (less than 6 months).

Group 2 — existing third parties/related parties (more than 6 months) with

no defaults in the past.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEBERER

14

CREDIT QUALITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS - GROUP AND 14
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial assets past due but not impaired
As at 31 December 2014, trade receivables of approximately RMB
306,101,000 (2013: RMBI135,259,000) were past due but not impaired. The

ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

CREENEEEE - FAEERE

NE(E)

(b) ERHEEFENSREE
WZE-—NF+ZA=+—R"
ERBEERENERE SN
HANRE306,101,0007T (=
T—=%F: AR¥135,259,000
TL) - ZERWESRNOERD
DI UNNE

As at 31 December

R+=A=t—8H
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E2-mE —T-=fF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARETTT

Over credit term but within 6 months HBAEEHE EREA 121,707 357
Over 6 months but within | year HiEeEA B ER F 699 82910
Over | year but within 2 years iR | FETBR2F 182,267 51,594
Over 2 years iR F 1,428 398

306,101 135,259

As at 31 December 2014, no other receivables were past due nor impaired
(2013 nil).

R-ZEBE—NF+-_A=+—H"
MEEMERZBHGRE (=
T—=F:E) -
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I5  PREPAYMENTS - GROUP AND COMPANY 15 BENRE-FRERALF
As at 3| December
Rt=ZB=t-H
Group Company
5 EYN|
2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-mE —T-=f ZB-RmE —T-=F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT ARBTR ARETR
Prepayments made for purchase of raw materials, BERME - RER
services, and equipment FEOEAR 19,506 35,766 542 563
Prepaid enterprise income tax EREED 15,284 4,893 = —
Prepaid value added tax ARMEREN 1,304 — — —
36,094 40,659 542 563
Less: Non-current portion A ERBES
Prepayments made for purchase of equipment (a) BERBNEMNTE (5,035) 4177) — —
(5,035) 4,177 = —
Current portion yEakiba) 31,059 36,482 542 563
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PREPAYMENTS - GROUP AND COMPANY (CONTINUED) 15

(@)  These balances represent prepayments made for the purchase of equipment,

the ownership of which has not been obtained.

The carrying amounts of current and non-current prepayments are denominated in

the following currencies:

ANRE-FKERERT (&)
@ HEEHREABERE (EMA
ERARES) MBMNOFA

BN IERB AN IR REENA T
B¥EHE

As at 3| December

Rt=-B=t-H
Group Company
LS 3 b N

2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-mE -—T--% ZB-MF —T-=F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARETT AR®TR ARETH
~RMB -AR% 35,487 40,045 — 419
~HKD —BT 458 470 393 —
— United States dollar ("USD”) —Zm([%Ex]) 63 63 63 63
— Swiss Franc ("CHF") — IR ([mLAER ) 86 8l 86 8l
36,094 40659 542 563
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HEHBHEM T
16  OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS - GROUP AND l6 HttERRREMEE-FAKREK
COMPANY EAN
As at 3| December
Rt=A=t-H
Group Company
F5E LN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—2-QmE -—T-=-F ZB-RE -—T-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARETT ARMTR ARETT
Government grants receivable (a) TR B UK () = 1,685 — —
Deposits e 2,068 627 — —
Interest receivable FEWFIE 4426 823 4426 823
Amounts due from third parties (b) BKE=AR ( ) 30,756 60,000 = 60,000
Amounts due from an associate (c) JEE T Hsk i 2 B 5K A (o) 1,250 — — —
Others it 5,206 3391 — —
43,706 66,526 4426 60823
Less: Provision for impairment R R ERRE - — — -
Less non-current portion: WIEREN S -

Amount due from third parties (b) FEU 55 = 75 FE (b) (14,000) — = —
Deposits A (1,112) — — —
(15,112) — = —
Current portion REEH D 28,594 66,526 4,426 60,823
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OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER ASSETS - GROUP AND 16
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(@)  This balance represents amounts due from the local government for

government grants that have been approved but not yet received.

(b)  These balances represent i) amount due from a third party company of
RMB 11,500,000 with contractual maturity date on 30 June 2015 and a fixed
interest rate at 6% per annum; ii) amount due from another third party
company of RMB 14,000,000 with a fixed interest rate at 5% per annum,
which will mature on 18 September 2019 based on the loan agreement; iii)
amount due from a third party company of RMB 5,256,000 with no interest,
which is fully repaid in January 2015.

() This balance represents amount due from Highland Natural Water for

leasing of a production line from the Group in 2014.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is the
carrying amounts of the receivables mentioned above. The Group does not hold

any collateral as security.

The carrying amounts of current and non-current other receivables are

HittBUR R EMEE -FKEK
ERATR(E)

@

()

ZAERIEE I EERKEIRA
3077 B B A B OB

ZEEREVER—RBE=F2
AIFRIEAARE1,500,0007T
EHHBMAAZS—HERA
=18 BEENERE i)l
S—HEE=ZFRARFEAARE
14,000,0007C * BEEFHESE -
BREEZRREBER=Z—NEN
A+N\BEE iiVER—FHE=
7 ARIFIERARES,256,0007T
(F&tR) ' ER-ZT—HF—
AZEMER -

DEBERBRANKR-E
—NERAEERELERNE
WA -

REERBEXRAPAKENRREER
fE A LR RRSANREE - A%E
WES A EAERRIEREM -

e R IFREE RSO RREEA T

denominated in the following currencies: SIEHEE
As at 3| December
R+=B=+-H
Group Company
r5E NG|
2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-mE -—T--F5 ZB-MF —T-=F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT AR¥TrR ARETRT
-RMB - AR¥ 38,724 65,152 — 60,003
~HKD —BT 4973 1360 4426 815
-UsD -X7 9 14 — 5
43,706 66,526 4426 60,823
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7 INVENTORIES - GROUP

17

FE-F&KH
As at 3| December
R+=RA=+—8H
2014 2013
—E-MEF =
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARETT

Raw materials R ¥ 42,193 35427
Finished goods R 18,455 14,672
Consumable materials AV 30 30
Work in progress &M 4,643 3958

65,321 54,087

The cost of inventories which was recognised as an expense and was included in
‘cost of sales’ amounted to approximately RMB277,630,000 for the year ended 3|
December 2014 (2013: RMB196,903,000).

As at 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of the Group's inventories did
not exceed the net realisable value, and no provision for decline of the value of

inventories was made.
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HEBERER

I8 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - GROUP AND COMPANY 18 BERBELEEY-AEEERERAD
=il
As at 31 December
W+=ZA=+-H
Group Company
by b N
2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-NF —T-=-F CZEBE-NF —FT-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETT
Cash on hand FHEES 618 140 — —
Cash at bank RITER 762,791 985,76 320,145 447 745
763,409 985416 320,145 442745
Denominated in: HEEE
~RMB - AR 747,532 937873 307,165 400,653
~-UsD -%7T 993 24,246 7 23260
~HKD —BTT 14,876 23289 12,973 18,832
— Others —Hi 8 8 — —
763,409 985416 320,145 44)745

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents amounting
to approximately RMB743,584,000 (2013: RMB938,826,000) were held in the
financial institutions located in the PRC. The remaining amounted to approximately
RMB19,825,000 (2013: RMB46,590,000) were held in major financial institutions

located in Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

The conversion of RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies and the
remittance of the foreign currencies out of the PRC are subject to relevant rules

and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC govemment.

The Group earns interests on cash at bank at floating bank deposit rates, which
range from 0.06% to 3.6% per annum for the year ended 3| December 2014 (2013:

range from 0.1% to 3.5% per annum).

WZZ-WFE+-A=+—H " K
SENBReRBAZTENNARE
743,584,000 (ZZE—=F : ARK
938,826,0007T) EAFEHEIR € BIMIE RS
B BTHARK9,825000T (=%
—=%F : AR¥46590,0007c) BEBS
BATHRNEESRBIEERSS -

UARBEHERN BRI BINE AR
SN BIE L - BB ST BB B
HOHERESNE & IR A AR B -

AEERFBRITERMERLIETE
FHEAS HE-ZT-—ME+ -5
=+—HIEFE - BEFFENT0.06
EZE36E (ZE—=%F: FHENTF
0.IEZE35E) o
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19 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM - GROUP AND COMPANY 19 BRAERERORE-FAEERAIDF
Number of Nominal Equivalent
ordinary shares value of  nominal value of
(thousand) ~ordinary shares ~ ordinary shares  Share premium Total
HERYE LZER
(fhR) EBREREE REESE R At
HKD'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
TR ARBTRT AR®TR ARET:R
Balance as at | January and _E-MER-T-=F
31 December 2014 and 2013 —R—-BRTZA=1-H
ke 2,568,893 25,689 21363 1,206,829 1,228,192
20  RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY 20 RE-ARERARQF
Group AEE
Statutory
Capital surplus  Translation
reserve reserve  differences Total
EERR
EN NEE HEESR st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWTFRT ARBTR ARBTR AR¥ETR
Opening balance | January 2013 —E-=%—-H—H
M F A ER 146,012 61,679 (29910) 177,78
Foreign currency translation differences INEFTEERR — — (23,340) (23,340)
Appropriations to statutory reserve surplus (a) REVEERBAER (2 — 41,084 — 41,084
At 31 December 2013 R-ZZ-—=%
+=-B=+-—H 146,012 102,763 (53250) 195,525
Opening balance | January 2014 —2-NF¥-A—H
LR 146,012 102,763 (53,250) 195,525
Foreign currency translation differences INETEER = = (766) (766)
Appropriations to statutory reserve surplus (a) REVEERBRDER (a) — 15,423 — 15,423
At 31 December 2014 R-Z-HmF
+=ZA=+—H 146,012 118,186 (54,016) 210,182
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20

RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Group (continued)

(@)

According to the provisions of the articles of association of the Group's
subsidiaries located in PRC (“PRC subsidiaries”), the PRC subsidiaries shall
first set aside 10% of its profit attributable to owners after tax as indicated in
their statutory financial statements for the statutory surplus reserve (except
where the reserve has reached 50% of the entity's registered share capital)
each vyear. PRC subsidiaries may also make appropriations from its profit
attributable to shareholders to a discretionary surplus reserve, provided it is
approved by a resolution passed in a shareholders” general meeting. These
reserves cannot be used for purposes other than those for which they
are created and are not distributable as cash dividends without the prior
approval obtained from the shareholders in a shareholders’ general meeting

under specific circumstances.

When the statutory surplus reserve is not sufficient to make good for any
losses of the PRC subsidiaries from previous years, the current year profit
attributable to the owners shall be used to make good the losses before any

allocations are set aside for the statutory surplus reserve.

The statutory surplus reserve, the discretionary surplus reserve and the
capital reserve of the PRC subsidiaries may be converted into share capital
of the PRC subsidiaries provided it is approved by a resolution passed in a
shareholders' general meeting and meets other regulatory requirements with
the provision that the ending balance of the statutory surplus reserve does

not fall below 25% of the registered share capital amount.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the directors of the PRC subsidiaries
proposed the appropriations amounting to approximately RMB 15,423,000
(2013: RMB 41,084,000) to statutory surplus reserve.

20 RE-FARERAQFE)
&M@ (E)

(@)

REASELRHEMNKELR
(ThEEAR ) MARERA
BB - BB AR EEFHK
EEMERRINEEE ARG
BEFER 0% BIEETEBHA
Be(EABESEEERIMMR
A50%EERIN) o o EIKE A A
TR EZBRAG BBRIRESR
HERKBREGFBRREER
BHORE - BRATBERIUAA
Hh ZFEREE TS RELL
M BRERERR TEER
RERAE EFRBAEIN - TR
SRERERENE -

EEERHABE T RARMAT
BRI  BIA BT & E B ERY » A
FENER RGN B ERR
EEBRBAESH R ERAEE

B

PERBARKEERBRDE
2 EERHLABENEAR
BeUELRRASEBIR
ERWEANAEMEERET
BRERR - BFRIETE AR
AR IEONERBAS B
25%

HE-_Z—NFE+-A=+—H
HEE HENBARINERE
ZROAKENEZERHBAES
HEANREEI542300L(ZF
—=%F: AR#¥41,084,0007C) °
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20  RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY (CONTINUED) 20 RBE-FAEEREQF(E)
Company ¥IN/N
Statutory
Capital surplus  Translation
reserve reserve  differences Total
EERER

BX e 2EE  HEEE st
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
AREBTRT ARBTR ARETR ARETR

Opening balance | January 2013 —E-=%—-A—H

ME LR — — (30,209) (30,209)
Foreign currency translation differences SNETE E 5 — — (37,038) (37,038)
At 31 December 2013 R-ZB-=%

+=B=+-H — — (67,247) (67.247)
Opening balance | January 2014 —E-N¥-A—H

HE LR — — (67,247) (67,247)
Foreign currency translation differences SNERTEER — — 4,131 4,131
At 31 December 2014 R=-E-NF

+=ZA=+-H = = (63,116) (63,116)
The profit attributable to owners of the Company as recorded in the financial BE_ZT-WNE+-_A=t—HLF
statements of the Company amounting to RMB 136,283,000 for the year ended 31 B KRBIMBHREMBARRBES
December 2014 (2013: RMB 144,592,000). AEEMBERARE 136,283,000 7T(=

T—=%F: AR¥ 144,592,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEBERER

21 DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP 22 EEMBH-AKHE
The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as follows: EEHEEENELEHIEARN DN
T

As at 31 December

R+=RA=+—-8
2014 2013
—B-IF “B-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARETT

Deferred tax assets: EEREBEEE .
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered after 12 months —1EAZKE
BETRIEEE 1,969 4032
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered within 12 months —1EAARKEEEERIESE 555 4366
2,524 8,398
Deferred tax liabilities: EEHEEE .
— Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered after |2 months — BB 1218 B & U
BEHERE (23,324) (31,234)
— Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered within 12 months ~ — 12 {8 B UK B &)EIE T B & (& (12,511 (18,984)
(35,835) (50,218)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEHBHEM T
21  DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP (CONTINUED) 20 BERBHR-TKE(E)
The gross movement on the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as EEHEEEELHIEA EHNE
follows: I
Year ended 31 December
BEt-RA=t—H
2014 2013
—F-mF —F-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARBTT
Deferred tax assets: EEREEE
At beginning of year F4) 8,398 9,248
Income statement charge FERETA (5,874) (850)
At end of year FR 2,524 8,398
Deferred tax liabilities: BEEBEAR !
At beginning of year F1) (50,218) (17,260)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 36) W i — R B A (BfT 3% 36) — (33,833)
Income statement charge FERETA (3,595) (16,385)
Payment I 17,978 17,260
Atend of year FR (35,835) (50218)
The net credit to income statement is as follows: FERECFRET

Year ended 3| December

BEZ+=-A=+-—-H
2014 2013
—E-MEF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFT
Deferred tax assets RIEFHIBEE 5,874 850
Deferred tax liabilities BRERIEEE 3,595 16,385
Net credit to income statement (Note 31) MBREEFEAES) 9,469 17,235
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEBERER

21

DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP (CONTINUED)

The balances of deferred tax assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2014 were
not offset because the deferred tax assets and liabilities related to income taxes

were levied by different taxation authorities. The movement in deferred income tax

assets and liabilities during the year is as follows:

21 EERBH -FEE(E)
R-ZZE-—ME+-_A=+—0  EL
MBEEERBBEEHIREE  JHA
REZEELCHBEEREBERAN
B TRBEEEBEK FAE
LEFEHEERBENZHNT

Undistributed Other
Provisions for Deferred Accrued  profits from  temporary
impairment income expenses  subsidiaries  differences Total
REWEAT HigaEn
RERE BERE RRER NADRNE ORE At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARSTE ARETL ARETR ARETR ARMTR
Deferred tax assets BEHEEE
At | January 2013 RZE-=F-F—H 347 1846 6,697 — 358 9,248
Income statement (charge)/credit /% (;tA)/ B - (65) (1076) - 29| (850)
At 31 December 2013 RZZ-=5+-A=1-H 347 ,781 5,621 = 649 8398
Income statement charge GY-EH N = (110) (5,621) = (143) (5,874)
At 31 December 2014 R-2-ME+-A=+-H 47 1,671 - - 506 2524
Deferred tax liabilities BEHERE
At | January 2013 WZE-=F-F—-H — — — (17.260) — (17.260)
Income statement (charge)/credit % (st A),/ &3 - - - (17978) 1,593 (16,385)
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi —FR B AR — — — — (33833) (33833)
Payment NES — - - 17,260 - 17,260
At 31 December 2013 RZZ-=$+-A=1-H = = = (17,978) (32,240) (50,218)
Income statement FBK(GA)/
(charge)/credit g1 = = = (10,489) 6,894 (3,595)
Payment OE — — — 17,978 — 17,978
At 31 December 2014 R=Z-ME+=A=t-H = = = (10,489) (25,346) (35,835)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HERBERER S

21

DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2014, as the Company's certain subsidiaries’ future taxable
income would not be available against which their temporary losses could be
utilised and also the losses of those subsidiaries would not be offset by the taxable
income of other subsidiaries within the Group, as there is no legally enforceable
right to do so. As such, the Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets
of RMB 8,447,000 (2013: RMB 10,328,000) in respect of losses amounting to RMB
35,707,000 (2013: RMB47,730,000) that can be carried forward against future
taxable income. Losses of RMB35,707,000 as at 31 December 2014 are expiring on

the following dates to offset the future taxable income:

21

BEFRESH - AEEH(E)
RZZE—ME+=-A=+—8 &2
AR5 T 08 2 B H) R R BE R B A
BEIZRAEERNEE  MZEWB
ARMEBEBTEASEEMHEA
AR ERTIAEE  BAYTAE
ERMOE AT REIMITRERN - R
SEVEBATEBERRERTLAD
B AR 357070000 (Z T — =
F: AR®477300007T ) BERIE AT
BHREEARYK 8447000 L(=ZF—
F: AR#103280007T ) B =
—E+-_A=+—BEHERKE
U B A R #E 47,730,000 T RO 5184
[ B EE Y T

6 oF 111

Pt

Year ended 3| December

BE+=-RA=+—-H
2014 2013
—E-MEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETT

Expiring in RUTFEER

~-2014 ——T—mF — 773
-2015 —-—F—hF 2,969 12,225
-2016 -—ZF—RX 11,375 13,369
-2017 —ZE—tF 10,568 10,568
-2018 -—ZE-)\#F 10,795 10,795
35,707 47,730

Deferred income tax liabilities of RMB 104,844,000 (2013: RMB 87,436,000)
had not been recognised for the withholding tax that would be payable on the
distributable retained profits amounting to RMB 1,048,444,000 (2013: RMB
874,362,000) of the Company's subsidiaries in the PRC. The Group has no
intension to distribute these retained eamings out from the subsidiaries in the PRC

in the near future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEBERER

22 DEFERRED REVENUE AND ADVANCES RECEIVED FROM 22 BZEWARBWRREBE(RE) —F&&K
CUSTOMERS (CURRENT) - GROUP
As at 31 December
Rt=—A=+-A
2014 2013
—E-mEF —ZT-=F
RMB’000 RMB000

ARBTR ARETTT

Deferred revenue BN

— Sales of water cards —HEKR 33,247 9,604

— Government grant (Note 23) — BUR# B (M 5E 23) 6,384 6,400
Advances received from customers BREFR 27,413 6,925

67,044 22,929

Less: non-current portion: B MBS -

sales of water cards (Note 23) THEKR(PEE23) (6,649) —
Current portion REEH D 60,395 22,929
As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group's deferred revenue and advances RZE-—NFRZZT-—=F1TZA
received from customers were all denominated in RMB. =t+—H  AEEHEERARKE

EPWBUAEHBUAREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HERBERER S

23 DEFERRED REVENUE (NON-CURRENT) - GROUP 23 EEZEWAGERE) —FKKE
As at 31 December
R+=A=+-A
2014 2013
—E-MEF =
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARETT

At beginning of year F9) 28,149 12,308
Acquisition of a subsidiary (a), (Note 36) Yo i — R F 2 A (2) (T 36) = 20,523
Addition NE 12,615 1979
Credited to income statement e E (10,179) (6,661)
At end of year FR 30,585 28,149
Less: current portion (Note 22) B omEER s (Mt 22) (6,384) (6,400)
Add non-current portion: sales of water cards (Note 22)  IIFERENE D : IHEKK
(F5E22) 6,649 —

Non-current portion FREBIH D 30,850 21,749
(@  The amount represents the government grant received from the Tibet () AEFBEERMGERBELE

Autonomous Government by Tiandi Green in relation to purchase of a A PTUSCER K B TE 48 B R BT A9

production line and low interest government loan. FiT 48 B SR AR SR AT &K o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEBERER

24  TRADE PAYABLES - GROUP 24 ENEEH-AEEH

As at 31 December

R+=RA=+—8H
2014 2013
—EF-mF —F-=
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTTT
Trade payables FER B 5K 117,340 72,766
117,340 72,766
As at 31 December 2014, the aging analysis of trade payables is as follows: RZE-—WFE+_A=+—0 " ERF
BIHRNRESTMT -
As at 3|1 December
W+=A=+—H
2014 2013
—E-DmF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETF T ARETT
Within 45 days 45 BAR 49,797 42307
Over 45 days but within 6 months HBiE45 BETBREA 61,790 23477
Over 6 months but within | year Hide A B ER | F 3,707 5326
Over | year but within 2 years BB FETRB2E 1,276 456
Over 2 years B2 FAE 770 1,200
117,340 72,766

RZE-—NFR-_ZE—=F+=-A
=t+—RB AEENESEZEZHNE
NEBHUAREHERL TS °

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group's trade payables and notes payables

were all denominated in RMB and not interest bearing.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HERBERER S

25 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES - GROUP AND COMPANY 25 HEREAREMESR-TEER
b NN
As at 31 December
R+=A=1+-8
Group Company
PN | AT
2014 2013 2014 2013

—¥-RE —T--fF ZF-RE —T-=F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE ARETE ARMTR ARETR

Salary payables EN%E 1,127 7992 — —
Welfare payables & A 1,628 1,022 — —
Value added tax and other taxes payable FESEER R MHE 5,789 2919 — —
Accrued expenses EREA 11,122 37,831 = —
Amounts due to subsidiaries FErSHIB A RIFUR — — 240,650 349,511
Advance received from a third party (a) BKE=FE () = 28,000 = —
Payable for acquisition of a subsidiary Wi — R E R )2
(Note 36) JE T ARIE (P 36) — 51,000 — —
Other payables HAt A 19,991 15,427 10,944 8,030
49,657 144,191 251,594 357,541
(@) Asat 3l December 2013, the balance RMB 28,000,000 represents advance @ RZTE-—=F+-A=+t—H"
received from Lhasa Finance Bureau in relation to the government grants # 87 A\ R % 28,000,000 7T 45 BE 7B
which had not been approved. oy B T B ) 0 A B O U
R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEBERER

25 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES — GROUP AND COMPANY 25 FEREAREMECSR-FREK
(CONTINUED) KRTF(E)
The carrying amount of the accruals and other payables are denominated in the TR E A K th 5 SR BRTEE J5 A
following currencies: TIEHEE -

As at 3| December

M+=A=t-H
Group Company
A%H AR
2014 2013 2014 2013

ZE-NFE —T-=-F ZE-NF —T=F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRE AREFTT AR¥TR ARETR

- RMB -AR% 42,308 138,843 247,105 357,541
- UsD -ET 3,003 4276 2,557 —
~HKD BT 4,346 1,072 1,932 —
49,657 144,19 251,594 357,541
26 BORROWING 26 B
As at 31 December
W+=A=t+—H
2014 2013
—F-mF —F-=fF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARETT

Non-current FRE
Long-term borrowing from government — Unsecured (a)  REIBUTER — &K (a) 91,549 —
Current TE
Current portion of long-term borrowing ROBFERO AN

from government

— Unsecured (a) — K H (a) 99,616 195,694
Total borrowing BB 191,165 195,694
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HERBERER S

26

BORROWING (CONTINUED)

The borrowing was denominated in RMB as at 31 December 2014.

(@)

The borrowing was granted to Tiandi Green by the Tibet Autonomous
government through Tibet Autonomous Region Investment Company. Based
on the original agreement between Tiandi Green and Tibet Autonomous
Region Investment Company, the borrowing with principal amount of
RMB200,000,000 was unsecured and the term of the borrowing was from
I July 2009 to 30 June 2014. On | July 2014, Tiandi Green entered an
extension agreement with Tibet Autonomous Region Investment Company
to extend the borrowing to 10 December 2016. According to the new
agreement, the loan is interest-free and it should be repaid based on the
following schedule: repayments of RMB 55,000,000, RMB 50,000,000 and
RMB 95,000,000 on 6 January 2015, 10 December 2015 and 10 December
2016 respectively. The borrowing was recorded initially at fair value and
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate at
4.00% per annum. The difference between the fair value of the borrowing
and the cost amounted to RMB12,614,000 was recorded as government

grant and amortised over the term of the loan.

The Group had no undrawn borrowing facilities as at 31 December 2014 and

2013.

The carrying amount of borrowing approximates its fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEHBEEM T
27 OTHER GAINS, NET 27 HtRE  FHE
As at 31 December
Rt=-RA=+—-H
2014 2013
—E-MEF =
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
Government grants (a) BB (a) 154,002 155,862
Gain on disposal of AFS (Note 34) (b) HERMHHESREEN RS
(F3E 34)(b) 17,850 —
Donation BR (1o1) (60)
Gain on remeasurement of previously held ZHIFAR A E RN EN
interests of Tiandi Green (Note 12, 36) 2 W (BEE 12, 36) = 3909
Others Hity 31 2
171,782 159,713
(a)  The amount mainly related to the govemment grant received by the Group () ZFBEFEERAFERUATAR
as follows: WS HR &) 8T 6 B A A
) According to “TEERIE [1997] No. 24", “Bl&1 B [2010] No. 93" R BIE ECH[1997]5F 24

and “RIFIETEET [2010] No. 29", the Group is eligible to receive
subsidy income from the local government in relation to the domestic
subsidiaries’ fiscal contribution to the local economic development as
a major tax payer and employer in Tibet. The Group recognised such
income of approximately RMB 114,895,000 for the year ended 31
December 2014 (2013: RMB117,534,000).

5 1 [# B & F[2010]
FRRIRIAMEF
201018295 |+ A& &
ERERBNEIZNH,
FEX BENRERA
R AW E AR RS
RERRELTBAER
B T BT B A e
AEERHE-T—NF
+ZR=+—RBLFER
ROUBBRADBARE
114,8950007L(= & — =
F: AR ¥117534,000
L) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HERBERER S

27  OTHER GAINS, NET (CONTINUED)

(@) The amount mainly related to the government grant received by the Group

as follows: (continued)

i) According to “H B EF [2012] No.101", the Group is also
eligible to receive such similar subsidy income after acquisition of
Tiandi Green. The Group recognised such income of approximately
RMB28,593,000 for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013:
RMB32,100,000 which represents the government grant income
received subsequent to 9 July 2013).

iy The directors of the Company noted that in November 2014, the
PRC government issued a notice requesting for revising certain
subsidy policies implemented by local governments. This may have
certain impact to the future subsidy income of the Group. The
directors of the Company will continue to monitor the development

of this matter.

(b)  For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group purchased financial
products amounting to RMB600,000,000 issued by financial institution in
the PRC. These investments retain the possible loss of the principal amount
invested, and were classified as AFS. These financial products will mature
within one year with variable return rates indexed to the performance of
underlying assets. As of 31 December 2014, the Group has disposed all
these investments, resulting in a gain amounted to RMB17,850,000.
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27 HAMRG - BEE)

(@)

(®)

FZRRTREAKERAT IR
WERE BT S BYAERE - ()

iy RIEM R B F[2012)
F1015% 1 R E X
Hek AEETEER
BESEBEUBBKA -
FEBREE-_T—F
+-A=T—HBLLEE®
ROBBRANBARE
28,593,0007L(= T — =
F: A K #32,100000
T WM AR T —ZF
T ANBRKENKERE
B

iy ARBEFIED EZ
Z-MHE+—RAPEBA
TET—BHNERZMT
R T 354 3 2 488 B BUR AE 1
BE - ERREYELRR
B RRABRBA - AR
REFKREEEEZEE
MR

BEZZ—NF+=ZA=+—H
LFE AEEBE THHER
NERMEBETHETERAA
R #600,000,0007T ° & &% &
MREARTFAEBNAE I
DEAIHIESRERE - B
HHEAFAEWaEREHIER
BEMEENSREMSE —F
NEE - BEZT—UF+ A
Z+—HLEFE  AEEELE
FTEELRE  UBREAAR
# 17,850,000 7T °




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEBERER

28  EXPENSES BY NATURE 28 BRMEHBASHER
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution expenses and ATAMEt AHERAR - HE kD i
administrative expenses are analysed as follows: ERARITHERNER :

Year ended 3| December

BE+-HA=t—-HLEE

2014 2013
—E2-mE —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARETT
Raw materials and consumables used P FR IR 4 B R A 212,419 163,405
Increase in the balances of inventories of ERm R ERmFE ARG
finished goods and work in progress (4,468) (15,038)
Transportation costs BRI 57,019 67,118
Depreciation of PP&E (Note 8) WE - BB KRETE (FHEE8) 51,591 36,054
Employee benefit expenses (Note 29) EEBMER(ME29) 64,220 53295
Advertising and marketing expenditure EELTSHEER 16,639 38,128
City construction tax and education surcharge WmERERHEWMNE 11,431 14,375
Electricity and other utility expenses BENREMEERER 9,329 6,084
Rental expenses HeER 7,960 2,352
Consulting and other service expenses i R E AR E A 10,425 17,506
Repair and maintenance B RRE 2,022 2,639
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 7) T fE AR o (e 7) 724 364
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 9) B EEBHE(MI) 22,086 10,490
Auditors’ remuneration ZERH e 7,000 4830
Exploration rights expenses RIEEE R 500 500
Office and consumption expenses MRREREER 12,332 12,034
Others Hito 2,983 2976
484,212 417,112
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HERBERER S

29 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

29

158 TIBET 5100 WATER RESOURCES HOLDINGS LTD.

BERMNEA

Year ended 3| December

BE+t-A=t—-HLHFE

2014 2013
—2-mF —E=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARETT
Wages and salaries I&N S 55,800 45,880
Provision for medical and other employee benefits BREIEMESRMNERE 2,811 2,363
REHRFEAKRE
Contributions to defined contribution pension scheme (2)  FHEIHE (a) 3,639 3452
Contributions to the housing scheme (b) EEEH ST (b) 1,970 1,600
64,220 53,295
(@)  Pension scheme (@) EBIKETFHE
The Group pays contributions to publicly administered pension insurance AEERRE  ARNELERRE
plans on a mandatory, contractual basis. The Group has no legal or BERRKRSRRETEEL MR -
constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not MEEETREREHEEXNME
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee EERAHE K BESREEMHE
service in the current and prior periods. The contributions are recognised BRBAGENEN  AEETTE
as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are HE—THREETHIET T ©
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the POl Hﬂ@wuﬁﬂ@?ﬁﬁ I
future payments is available. X BRHRERRGREORES
FHEBRNFBDOER T HER A
BE -
(b)  Housing scheme (b) EEFTE

In accordance with the PRC housing reform regulations, the Group is
required to make contributions to the Chinese state-sponsored housing
fund at 10% of the salaries of the PRC employees. At the same time, the
employees are also required to make a contribution at 10% of their salaries
out of their payroll. The employees are entitled to claim the entire sum of

the fund under certain specified withdrawal circumstances.

c BEESIOKERERERALT

BREFRETEHEREER - X
EENERTEREEFSH 0%
AT EBGAGNEEARSE
Bt - FE - BEEMERES
SHERIBERBT - EET
BEBET  EEARREN2E
HEERESHR -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEBERER

29  EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (CONTINUED) 29 EERFEBRAE)
(c) Directors’ emoluments () ES=Me
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 December 2014 is REFEHE_T—NFE+_A
set out below: S+—BLEFENHMET
T~
Employer’s
contribution
to pension
Discretionary scheme
Salary bonuses EEMBHRE Total
Name of Director BEEpng e RiETA HE 25 #ct

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR  ARMTn AR®Tn  ARETn

Mr. Yu Yiping Wallace a— T4k 1,307 — 13 1,320
Mr. Fu Lin 354 1,030 - — 1,030
Mr. Yue Zhigiang EFRis 1,030 - — 1,030
Ms. Mu Chunhua BEERT 3% - — 3%
Mr. Jiang Xiaohong ZRIEE 39% = = 3%
Mr. Liu Chen AREE 770 62 13 845
Mr. Jesper Bjoer Madsen vy 380 = = 380
Mr. Lee Kong Wai, Conway FhExE 380 - — 380
Mr. Wei Cheng, Kevin RIS 380 = = 380
Mr. Wong Hak Kun (i) IRBEE() 77 - — 77
6,146 62 2% 6,234
(i) Appointed on 8 December 2014. () RZZE-—OFE+ZANAH
BRE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HERBERER S

29  EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (CONTINUED) 29 EERFEBRAE)
(c) Directors’ emoluments: (continued) (c) EEMe(E)
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 December 2013 is REFHE_T—=%1+ZA
set out below: S+—BLEFENHMET
T~
Employer's
contribution
to pension
Discretionary scheme
Salary bonuses EXMENKE Total
Name of Director (£ 5e BERL AR t3t

RMB000 ~ RMBOOO ~ RMBO00  RMB00O
ARBTT  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR

Mr. Yu Yiping, Wallace a— T4k 1,297 — 12 1,309
Mr. Fu Lin 354 1,022 — — 1,022
Mr. Yue Zhigiang EFRis 1,022 — — 1,022
Ms. Mou Chunhua BEELL 393 — — 393
Mr. Liu Chen AR%E 717 — 12 729
Ms. Jiang Xiaohong ZRILT 393 — — 393
Mr. Jesper Bjoern Madsen vy 377 — — 377
Mr. Lee Kong Wai, Conway FhExE 377 — — 377
Mr. Wei Cheng, Kevin RIS 377 — — 377
5975 — 24 5999
There was no remuneration, inducement fee, or compensation for loss of BE_Z-—MER-ZF—=F1+2H
office to directors during the years ended 31 December 2014 and 201 3. =+—BLEFE HEEMNEE £
BERESERAES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEBERER

29 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

(d)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group
for the year include three (2013: three) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments paid and payable

to the remaining two (201 3: two) individuals during the year are as follows:

29

BERMEME)

(d)

LEREHFMAL
AFEEAKELLERFMAL
BR=ZA(ZF-ZF =R)E
2 RENMESERN LXHAZT
KD RIR - REFE M KR
TEHMA(ZT—=F: B4)
ERIALHMEMT :

Year ended 3| December

BE+T-A=+—-HLHFE

2014 2013
“E-OF —E—=F
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARETT

Basic salaries and allowances EARE & M8
Bonuses TE4T

2,124 2,062
I55 —

2,279 2,062

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

BENFATEE
Number of individuals
ERALEE

2014 2013
—E-MF —Z=

Emolument bands il &5 [Z]
HKD 1,000,001 to HKD 1,500,000

AR | 200,0007T)
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000

1,000,001 &7 Z 1,500,000 78 7T
(approximately RMB800,001 to RMB1,200000) (£ AR¥ 800,001 TE

1,500,001 /& 7T & 2,000,000 /& 7T

(approximately RMB 1,200,001 to RMBI1,600000) (49 AR¥ 1,200,001 TTE

AR |,600,0007T)
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HERBERER S

30 FINANCE INCOME, NET 30 BB FE
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE
2014 2013
—E-MEF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFT
Foreign exchange (losses)/gains, net EH(EX), M 5 (1,681) 271
Interest cost on a borrowing from government B EE H B AR (8,084) (4,408)
Other finance costs Hib B & (105) (73)
Finance costs BBER (9.870) (4.210)
Interest income AISNON 13,978 24,427
Finance income B A 13,978 24427
Finance income, net WA R 4,108 20217
31 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 31 FERER

The amount of income tax expense charged to the consolidated income statement

represents:

AT REMBRSANAEHER -

Year ended 3| December

BE+-HA=t—-HLEE

2014 2013

—E-mEF —T—=fF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR ARBTT

Current income tax EHMEH 71,395 89,049
Deferred income tax charge (Note 21) RIEFETRA X (i 21) 9,469 17,235
Income tax expense FrstiE A 80,864 106,284
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HEBERER

31 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 32 FiEMER(Z)
The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the theoretical AEENRAAEHRAF B #HE
amount that would arise using the statutory tax rate as follows: BRIREREEREAESHNIER

A HREMT

Year ended 3| December

BE+T-A=+—-HLHFE

2014 2013
“E-mF —T—=F
RMB’'000 RMBR'000

AR®BT ARETT

Profit before income tax BR PSR AT AR 465,478 567,199
Tax calculated at statutory tax rate of 25% BATERE 5% 5 ERFIE 116,370 141,800
Preferential tax rates on income of certain group entities % T 5 B B B8R UL A
PIEXHBERE (47,496) (54,614)

Income not subject to tax BARM AU SR — (4381)
Tax on deemed revenue BIERANSE 549 2204
Tax losses of certain group entities for which no I R RIR AL TS T B ERY

deferred income tax assets were recognised ETEEBRNOTEESE 2,440 2,699
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses AT ZAHNRERBBELX (1,142) (4.918)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes TRHIRE R 5,529 5021
Effect of difference between preferential tax rate RRLEHIBNEER X

and statutory tax rate on recognition of deferred tax AT EEZRNTE (1,942) 495
Re-measurement of deferred tax — change in Lhasa B EEERIE - NEH X

tax rate from 15% to 9% (year 2015 to 2017) B I5%Z8%Z9%

(ZE—RAFE-T—+%F) (3,933) —

Withholding tax from distribution of profits by BB 2 R B A

the PRC subsidiaries PEERRIRR 10,489 17,978
Income tax expense FristiE A 80,864 106,284
The weighted average tax rate was 17.4% for the year ended 31 December 2014 BE-T—NF+-A=1T—HBILHF
(2013: 18.7%). B MEFHBERI74%(ZF—=

F:187%) °

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands. Under current laws of the ARRRFERSTMETL - RIEF
Cayman Islands, there is no income, estate, corporation, capital gains or other taxes SHETITER KRR ETME
payable by the Company. The group entities established under the International BPRIEH - BEN - RAIH - BRE
Business Companies Acts of the British Virgin Islands are exempted from British ANHEMTIE RERABR LS
Virgin Islands income taxes. MEREBRAREKINEEERBE

HRBNEBRABENMEN
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e

31

32

164 TIBET 5100 WATER RESOURCES HOLDINGS LTD.

LpE Edra

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

The group entities incorporated in the PRC are subject to PRC enterprise income
tax. Four entities are located in the Tibet Autonomous Region of the PRC and
were entitled to preferential rate of 5% for the year ended 31 December 2014
(2013: 15%); the remaining entities were taxed based on the statutory income tax
rate of 25% for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: 25%) as determined in

accordance with the relevant PRC income tax rules and regulations.

From year 2015 to year 2017, the corporate income tax rate of Lhasa will change
from 15% to 9%, and from 2018 onwards, the corporate income tax rate will
resume to 15%. Accordingly, the relevant deferred tax balances at 31 December
2014 had been re-measured based on the expected tax rates applicable in the

future.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic and diluted
Basic eamnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of
the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during

the year.

Diluted earnings per share is equal to the basic earnings per share since the
Company has no potential dilutive ordinary shares during the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013.

c BEESIOKERERERALT

32

32

FRrEBER(E)

ERBEMR N ASEEBEMNR
HEMCEMEBR - HEZT—MN
+ZA=+—HLFE BRuR
BABECENEREEZXIS%(ZF
—ZF:IS%MEBERE AREE
RBE-T—NE+-_A=+—RH1t
FERBHEBOPBEMEHRNRE
IR 2B%EEMBERE(ZT—=
F 1 25%)BF o

B hEE_T—+F HFW
m¢¥% mfhmw% A5 9% -
T NFU®B CERBE mz%

BE 5% At RZE—WFE+=
AZ+—H HEEERBELEHER
BREEAESERNREENE
BREF
BEXR#E
BRERBFNFTETEE  ARQF

HAEANBEFANBRARFED %
TEBRH TS -

AR ARARBE_ZT-—OFR_-F
— =+ A=+ BUEFETEE
E#EERK HEeRkEEANES
RERBNEEF




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEHBEZM T
32 EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED) 32 BRER (&)
Basic and diluted (continued) BEXR@E (&)
Year ended 3| December
BE+-A=t—-HLEE
2014 2013
—2-pmF —T-=F
Profit attributable to owners of ARAVER ANELFE
the Company (RMB'000) (ANEBFT) 343,499 441,280
Weighted average number of ordinary BEEITE AR INETHH
shares in issue (thousands) (LAFEH) 2,568,893 2,568,893
Eamings per share (basic and diluted) BREM(ERREES)
(RMB cents per share) (BRARED) 13.37 17.18
33 DIVIDENDS 33 KRR

Dividend of HKDO0.08 per share (amounting to HKD205,511,000, equivalent
to RMB162,682,000 based on the exchange rate at the payment date of such
dividend) was declared and paid in 2014 in respect of the year ended 31 December
2013 (2013: dividend of HKD 154,134,000, equivalent to RMB122,752,000 was
declared and paid in 2013 in respect of the year ended 31 December 2012). A
dividend in respect of the year ended 3| December 2014 of HKD0.04 per share,
which is equivalent to a total dividend of approximately RMB 81,064,000 is to be
proposed at the annual general meeting of the company. These financial statements

do not reflect this dividend payable.

The Company's subsidiaries will declare sufficient dividends to the Company to

enable the Company to pay dividends to its shareholders.

T-NERNEZE-ZT—=F1+=
H +—HLEFEREATRR008HE
JL(E205511,0008 7T » ERN %K
BHUERMNFAMNEXRTENAR
162,682,000 )(ZF —=F: =
E-=FLRNEBEE-_ZT—Z—_F1+=A
=T —BIEFERE R 154,134,000 %
7T ERPARE 122,752,0007T) © A
AR ERRBEFAE LREBREE
ET-NF+-A=+—HLEFE
MRS BRAE04EB T ERMNEK
BBENHAANRE 81,064,000 7T I fE
IR B R RER RSB RF o

ARAWHERBRRARRDIKE
HERR R - AR E R A HRIR X
IR
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HEHBEZM T
34 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

34

REFHMEENRE

Year ended 3| December

BET-A=t—-HLEE

2014 2013
—2-HmF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTTT
Profit before income tax BR PSR AT AR 465,478 567,199
Adjustments for: HE
Amortisation of intangible assets and land BV EE R AERE
use rights (Note 28) (FfzE28) 22,810 10,854
Depreciation of PP&E (Note 28) ME - BB KR ETE (P 28) 51,591 36,054
Net foreign exchange losses/(gains) (Note 30) B 5 &8, (e ) F 58 (B & 30) 1,681 Q71
Deferred revenue charged to income SEAMBRAEEBA (FEE23)
statement (Note 23) (10,179) (6,661)
Interest income, net FBUA « 558 (5,894) (24,427)
Share of profit of associate (Note 12) JEfE — R 2 Ala A (P T 12) (1,263) (17,525)
Gain on remeasurement of previously held EEERAFNBEARER
interest in an associate (Note 27) Yas (P 27) — (3,909)
Gain on disposal of AFS (Note 27) HERAHLESREE
B g (B EE27) (17,850) —
Operating profit before working capital changes EEESREANEE R 506,374 561,314
Increase in inventories FEIEM (11,234) (12,267)
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables FENE SR,/ (38 hn) 121,148 (76,843)
Decrease in prepayments and other receivables A I B E A U FOR A 5,178 23,343
Decrease in pledged deposits REERD = 6,543
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables FERESR3E M,/ (Rd) 44,574 (22,462)
Decrease in accruals and other payables TERE A K H AN TR (43,557) (4,121
Increase/(Decrease) in deferred revenue EEWARREEFRITEK
and advance received from customers M (D) 44,131 (7,788)
Cash generated from operations RETBREENRE 666,614 467719
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HEBERER

35

36

COMMITMENTS 35 K
(a)  Capital commitments (@) BEARMER
As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group and the Company did not RZE-—OFR-ZT—=F+=
have any material capital commitments. A=+—8 XEEREKARL
BAEMERERMEAG
(b)  Operating lease commitments (b) REHEHRR
The Group leases offices and plant under non-cancellable operating lease AEERBENATBUER L EHRA
agreements. The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non- MARREREE o L TRAA
cancellable operating leases were as follows: BUBK 2B TR RKIEHE
TR
As at 31 December
R+=A=t—8H
2014 2013
—E2-mE —T-=fF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARETTT
No later than | year | F AR 6,378 2456
Later than | year and no later than 5 years | =54 9,213 5912
15,591 8,368
BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 36 EBAH

On 25 December 2012, the Group acquired 35% of the equity interests of Tiandi
Green for RMB 595,000,000. On 9 July 2013, the Group acquired a further 30% of
the equity interests in Tiandi Green and obtained control over Tiandi Green since
that date.

The goodwill of RMB 721,139,000 arising from the acquisition is attributable to
acquired customer base and economies of scale expected from combining the
operations of the Group and Tiandi Green. None of the goodwill recognised is

expected to be deductible for income tax purpose.

W-ZE——F+-_H=-+AHB K&
B LA A R % 595,000,000 7T 4 B8 K H
BE%ER M _E—Z=ZF+L AN
B RNEBEE—FPWE R E30%
Bmll BB RIS RE BT
iHil4E

WHEFTEE A AR 721,139,000 LK
EEDERRNERTEFPELEBEHERA
AHALEERKILGENERMES
RRENE - RIS AEERANEE
AHIRATEH °
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36  BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED) 36 EBEH (&)
TEBER-_T—=FtANLANRK
EOOREERMECHAIAOR
B FEBEENAAEME AR
BERIERER -

The following table summarises the consideration paid for purchase of Tiandi
Green, the fair value of assets acquired, liabilities assumed and the non-controlling

interest at the acquisition date on 9 July 2013.

Consideration: RE: RMB’000
— Cash -Re 510,000
— Fair value of previously held interest in Tiandi Green — FERTRA RIAR B FT R =

MDA EE 605,500
Total consideration BRE 1,115,500

There is no contingent consideration or other form of future payments under this

Et 2 T ERARBREMT A

arrangement. B ARRATHR o
At 9 July 2013: R=-E-=5tANA:
Amounts of identifiable assets acquired B TTEBI EE R

and liabilities assumed FREEENEE RMB'000
Cash and cash equivalents BeRkBReEEY 205,386
Land use rights (Note 7) T e AR (BIEE7) 31,990
PP&E (Note 8) ME - BE Rk (MEEs) 417926
Intangibles (Note 9) B EE(M59) 209,300
Inventories FE 27,245
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 3R B E A Uk 70,601
Trade and other payables BN E SRR E bR 5K (40,872)
Advances received from customers FAWEP K (2,676)
Deferred revenue (Note 23) EEUA (BI3E23) (20,523)
Borrowings fER (241,287)
Enterprise income tax payable FERI B PTEH (13,827)
Salary and wage payables EREZHERIE (2411)
Other current liabilities HimBask (310)
Deferred tax liabilities, net (Note 21) EIERIBAS  FRE(KIE21) (33,833)
Total identifiable net assets MHBIEFEEAR 606,709
Non-controlling interest A S (212,348)
Goodwill (Note 10) ERGER) 721,139

[,115500
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HEBERER

36

37

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

The Group recognised a gain of RMB 3,909,000 as a result of remeasurement
of its previously held 35% equity interests in Tiandi Green upon the acquisition
of additional 30% equity interests in July 2013. The gain was included in ‘other
gains, net’ in the Group's consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
December 2013.

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control the other party or
exercise significant influence in making financial and operating decisions. Parties are

also considered to be related if they are subject to common control.

The Group is ultimately controlled by Mr Wang Peter Jian, the “Controlling

Shareholder”.

(@)  Transactions with related parties:

36

37

¥%att (&)

EZT—=F+ AREEEIN30% M ##
mR - AEBEREFEERARE
ARG ERNI%REMERT BAR
#3,909,000 THY M2 o R ETA
AEBBEE-_T-—=F+-_A=+—

AUEFEGANBRNIEMFE  F
BIA -
BELIXS

BERE T RIS RE SR Bl 5 — T O E B
BREEREBMEAZEOAL -
HFESERITRE AR -

AEEHEREE(TERBRER ] &K
2

) HEFEBETHXE:

Year ended 3| December

BE+T-A=t—-HLEE

2014 2013
—2-pmE —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETTT
Revenue from license fee (i) PR AR (i)
— Entities under common control —XA—EHNER — 40
Purchase of goods (ii) REED (i)
— Entities under common control —ZRA—ZHNEE 741 446
Lease expenses (iii) MEEHA (i)
— An entity controlled by Mr. Yu Yiping Wallace, - XAEEEFE—FEE
the Chairman of the Group THINE S 198 351
Revenue from leasing of a production line ME S ERBA
— An associate (iv) ——BEZERF (v) 342 —
Revenue from selling of bottle caps HEMB WA
— An associate (iv) ——MEEQF (v) 1,893 —
Revenue from providing consulting services R AR A
— An associate (iv) ——FBE AR (v) 83 —
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37 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 37 BMAERB(E)
(@)  Transactions with related parties: (continued) (@) HBBENXS:(#)

(i) Revenue from license fee was the royalty fee charged to an entity () BRERERR E*Eﬁ;?x
controlled by the Controlling Shareholder based on agreed terms 75 69 185 5 18R 3K 1A e 43 R
between both parties. Rt BRek -

(i) Goods were bought from an entity controlled by the Controlling (i) EYVERBEEHHOHERK
Shareholder based on agreed terms between both parties. AR IR R I Il 0 B B8

BREE -

(i) Lease expenses were from the leasing fee of vehicle from an entity (il HEEAREXRENERE
controlled by the Chairman of the Group based on agreed terms EHHNHEGRRIBREER
between both parties. IEEHO BB TEH

g%

(iv)  These were the transactions between the Group and Highland (iv) BLR/AEEEZRIA
Natural Water, a newly acquired associate in November 2014. The K(—ARZT—MF+—
transactions were based on agreed terms between both parties. AEBER I E A E]) 2 M@

MRS ZERXHIER
AT AIEETT A TE RO IR T

(b)  Balance with a related party: (b) EEBAEFH ML
The balance with a related party is as follows: ERRARE D R ERAN T

Year ended 3| December

BE+T-A=+—-HLHFE

2014 2013
“E-OF —T—=F
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARETT

Other receivables H A e LA R TE

— An associate - Highland Natural Water - Hﬁﬁ%@ T — R BRRAK 2,134 —
Other receivables from Highland Natural Water mainly arisen from leasing of mRARKNEMERFIEEE
a production line and providing of consulting services. They were unsecured, THEE—REEFMRMER
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. PRIGFTSIAE « Z WA RER

W BRI AEEE -
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HEHBEZM T
37 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 37

(¢)  Key management compensation

The compensation paid/payable to key management is shown below:

BHMAERS (&)

() FEEBEAEHM:
B/ BN EEERE A B KR
Z5WTF

Year ended 3| December

BE+T-A=+—-HLHFE

2014 2013
“E-mF —T—=F
RMB’'000 RMBR'000

AR®BT ARETT

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits e hEMmEHESRF

8513 8,061

38 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE 38

On 29 January 2015, the Group acquired additional 3% equity interests in
Highland Natural Water with cash consideration of RMB 390,000,000. Together
with the 20% equity interests acquired in November 2014, the Group owned 33%

equity shares of Highland Natural Water after the above additional acquisition.

EEEERAHERSER

RZZ—RFE—A-F+NB A£H
BAA R # 390,000,000 T B 3R & K B UK
B RRAKEING 13%H) RHE - &
B = —MFE+— A W R 20% i
o AREEERBEIMNESEER
BEBRXANK3II%MERS
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
HEBEE

For the year ended 3| December
BEt-A=1t—-HLEE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—¥-NF —T-=F —FT-——F —FT——F —FT-FF

Profitability data (RMB million) BERNYE
(AR®BET)

Revenue W 773 787 682 633 36
Gross profit EH 484 576 555 499 232
Operating profit LA 460 529 479 441 135
Profit for the year FEAE 385 461 411 373 115
Profitability data (%) BRI HE (%)
Gross profit margin ERNE 63% 73% 81% 79% 64%
Operating profit margin BT 60% 67% 70% 70% 37%
Net profit margin AN 50% 59% 60% 59% 32%
Return on total shareholders' equity AR SR i 2 4B KB [0 3 K 13% 1 7% 19% 20% 41%
Assets and liabilities data BEEHEEYRE

(RMB million) (AR®EBER)
Non-current assets FRBEE 2215 1,661 915 301 302
Current assets MEEE 1,221 1,596 1,729 1,736 158
Current liabilities nEEE 327 455 412 161 165
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 158 72 30 2 12
Equity attributable to owners ARAER NEERR

of the Company 2,678 2,497 2,202 854 283
Assets and Working Capital data EENRBESEIE
Current assets ratios MBEELL X 36% 49% 65% 85% 34%
Gearing ratios BEARGRELE 6.08% 6.69% — — —*
Note: BsE -
The summary above does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements. T EY TSR CER SRR RERN—ID o
The financial information for the year ended 31 December 2010 was extracted from the Prospectus. BE—_ZEZ—ZEFE+_A=+—HII—AEENFBE

Byt B R AR BRER -

* Restated * El
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Our mission:
Serve the Best
Quality Water to the World
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